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Date: 06/09/2024 
To, 
The Listing Department, 
The National Stock Exchange Limited, 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), MUMBAI – 400051 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Sub:  Annual Report – 2024 & Notice of 30th Annual General Meeting 
 
Ref:  NSE Symbol BAHETI; ISIN- INE029Q01017 
 
With reference to the captioned subject, we inform that 30th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company will be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 04:00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), in accordance with the applicable 
circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India.  
 
Pursuant to regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015, we 
enclose herewith Annual Report for the FY 2023-24 and Notice of 30th AGM. The said reports are 
being sent to the shareholders through e-mail and have been uploaded on the website of the 
Company https://www.bahetiindustries.com  
 
The “cut-off date” for determining eligibility of shareholders for remote e-voting/e-voting at AGM 
and for attending AGM is fixed as Monday, 23rd September, 2024. The remote e-voting period 
shall commence from Friday, 27th September, 2024 (9:00 a.m.) and end on Sunday, 29th 
September, 2024 (5:00 p.m.). The detailed instruction with regard to the remote e-voting/e-voting 
at AGM and procedure for attending AGM is provided in the notice of AGM which are being sent 
to shareholders and submitted to stock exchanges. 
 
Kindly take note of the same in your records. 
 

Thanking you 
 

Yours faithfully, 
For, Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
 
 
YASH SHANKERLAL SHAH 
JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR 
DIN: 09527701 
 
Encl.: As above  
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 NOTICE 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of members of Baheti 
Recycling Industries Limited (“the Company”) (CIN No. L37100GJ1994PLC024001) will be 
held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 04.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing 
(VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following businesses:  

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the reports 
of the Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard.  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 

2. To declare Final Dividend of Rs. 0.50/- (Rupee Fifty Paisa only) per equity share of                   
Rs. 10/- each (Rupee Ten only) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and, in this 
regard.  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT final dividend at the rate of Rs. 0.50/- (Rupees Fifty Paisa only) per 
equity share of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten only) fully paid-up of the Company, as 
recommended by the Board of Directors, be and is hereby declared for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 and the same be paid out of the profits of the Company.” 
 

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486), 
who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
4. To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 

2024-25 
 

To consider and if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications, the following 
resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 and Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the 
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 44,000/- (Rupees Forty Four Thousand 
only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement out of pocket expenses, to be paid to M/s. 
Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 102409), who have been 



appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, as 
the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost accounting records of 
the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Chief Financial Officer of the Company be 
and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and take all 
such steps as may be necessary and incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”  
 

5. To increase Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Shankerlal Shah, Whole-Time 
Director of the Company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications, the following 
resolutions as Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of the resolution passed by the members of 
the Company in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 08th March, 2022, for 
appointment of Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah (DIN: 00131715) as Whole-Time Director of 
the Company with effect from 07th March, 2022 to 06th March, 2027 on the terms and 
conditions of remuneration mentioned therein and pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 
197 and 198 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, [including any statutory modification(s) or 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force] and such 
other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be required and subject to such 
conditions and modifications, as may be prescribed or imposed by any of the authorities 
while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, and pursuant to 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors, consent of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for upward 
revision of remuneration of Mr. Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 00131715), Whole-Time Director 
of the Company, as set out in the Explanatory Statement, with effect from 01st April, 
2024 upto the remainder period of the tenure of his appointment i.e. 06th March, 2027. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT except for the revision in the scale of basic salary, all other 
terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration, as approved earlier by the 
Members, and which are not dealt with in this Resolution, shall remain unchanged and 
continue to be effective.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the 
tenure of the Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah (DIN: 00131715), Whole-Time Director, the 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to the Mr. 
Shankerlal Bansilal Shah (DIN: 00131715), Whole-Time Director, the remuneration as 
approved by the Members from time to time, as the minimum remuneration by way of 
salary, perquisites and other allowances, benefits and Performance Pay, subject to receipt 
of the requisite approvals, if any. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company be and hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to revise the basic 
salary payable to the Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah (DIN: 00131715), Whole-Time Director 
within the scale of salary as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed and to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in 
this connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution 
and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

  



 
6. To increase Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah, 

Managing Director of the Company 
 

To consider and if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications, the following 
resolutions as Special Resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of the resolution passed by the members of 
the Company in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 08th March, 2022, for 
appointment of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486) as Managing Director of 
the Company with effect from 07th March, 2022 to 06th March, 2027 on the terms and 
conditions of remuneration mentioned therein and pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 
197 and 198 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, [including any statutory modification(s) or 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force] and such 
other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be required and subject to such 
conditions and modifications, as may be prescribed or imposed by any of the authorities 
while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, consent of members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for upward revision of remuneration of Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486), Managing Director of the Company, as set out in the 
Explanatory Statement, with effect from 01st April, 2024 upto the remainder period of the 
tenure of his appointment i.e. 06th March, 2027. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT except for the revision in the scale of basic salary, all other 
terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration, as approved earlier by the 
Members, and which are not dealt with in this Resolution, shall remain unchanged and 
continue to be effective.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the 
tenure of the Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486), Managing Director, the 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to the Mr. 
Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486), Managing Director, the remuneration as 
approved by the Members from time to time, as the minimum remuneration by way of 
salary, perquisites and other allowances, benefits and Performance Pay, subject to receipt 
of the requisite approvals, if any. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company be and hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to revise the basic 
salary payable to the Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486), Managing Director 
within the scale of salary as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed and to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in 
this connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution 
and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 
 

7. To increase Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah, Joint 
Managing Director of the Company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications, the following 
resolutions as Special Resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of the resolution passed by the members of 
the Company in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 10th March, 2022, for 
appointment of Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 09527701) as Joint Managing Director of 
the Company with effect from 09th March, 2022 to 08th March, 2027 on the terms and 



conditions of remuneration mentioned therein and pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 
197 and 198 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, [including any statutory modification(s) or 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force] and such 
other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be required and subject to such 
conditions and modifications, as may be prescribed or imposed by any of the authorities 
while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, consent of members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for upward revision of remuneration of Mr. Yash 
Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 09527701), Joint Managing Director of the Company, as set out 
in the Explanatory Statement, with effect from 01st April, 2024 upto the remainder period 
of the tenure of his appointment i.e. 08th March, 2027. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT except for the revision in the scale of basic salary, all other 
terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration, as approved earlier by the 
Members, and which are not dealt with in this Resolution, shall remain unchanged and 
continue to be effective.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the 
tenure of the Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 09527701), Joint Managing Director, the 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to the Mr. 
Yash Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 09527701), Joint Managing Director, the remuneration as 
approved by the Members from time to time, as the minimum remuneration by way of 
salary, perquisites and other allowances, benefits and Performance Pay, subject to receipt 
of the requisite approvals, if any. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company be and hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to revise the basic 
salary payable to the Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 09527701), Joint Managing Director 
within the scale of salary as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed and to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in 
this connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution 
and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 
 
 
 
 
 For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
 

Date: September 05,2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
 

                                  Sd/- 
Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 03006486 

 
 

Sd/- 
 Yash Shankerbhai Shah 

Joint Managing Director 
DIN: 09527701 

 
Registered Office: 
A/2/3, L R Appartment, 
Opp. Police Commissioner Office, 
Shahibaug, Ahmedabad-380004 

 
 



NOTES:  
 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) by Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, 

Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 
2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January, 13, 2021 and Circular No. 21/2021 dated 
December 14, 2021 , 02/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 
and the latest being 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (“MCA Circulars”) read with 
Securities Exchange Board of India Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated January 15, 2021 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 dated May 
13, 2022 and SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CFD- PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 had permitted 
sending of the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report only through electronic mode to 
those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories 
as well as conducting the AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM). Accordingly, in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the said Circulars the: 
 
a. Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 is being 

sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company / Depositories. 

 
b. The 30th AGM of the Members will be held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue 

for the 30th AGM of the Company shall be the Registered Office of the Company 
situated at A/2/3, L R Appartment, Opp: Police Commissioner Office, Shahibaug, 
Ahmedabad – 380004, Gujarat, India. The Company has enabled the VC facility 
provided by Central Depository Services India Private Limited (CDSL) for the 
Members to participate at the meet. The detailed procedure for participating in the 
meeting through VC/OAVM is explained in the subsequent notes of this Notice. 

 
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and 
MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company will be held through VC / OAVM. Hence, 
Members can attend and participate in the 30th AGM through VC/OAVM only.  
 

2. The notice of AGM along with Annual report are being sent in electronic mode to 
Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company or the Depository 
Participant(s). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be 
available on the Company’s website www.bahetiindustries.com, website of stock 
exchanges i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com. 
Members (Demat) who have not registered their email addresses with the Company can 
get the same registered with the Company by requesting in member updation form by 
sending an email to support@purvashare.com and submitting duly filled and signed 
member updation form to the above-mentioned email. Upon verification of the Form the 
email will be registered with the Company. 

3. The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 
Tuesday, 24th September, 2024 to Monday, 30th September, 2024 (both days 
inclusive) for the purpose of determining entitlement of Dividend on equity shares, if 
declared at the meeting.  

4. Dividend will be paid to those shareholders whose name appears in the Register of 
Members as at the end of the business hours on the record date i.e., Monday, 23rd 
September, 2024. 

http://www.bahetiindustries.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/


Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of the 
Shareholders w.e.f. 1st April, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct TDS from 
dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates in the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“the IT 
Act”). In order to enable us to determine the TDS rate as applicable, members are 
requested to upload Form 15G/15H, if applicable, on the weblink provided by company’s 
RTA.  

5. SEBI, vide its Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated 21st March, 2013, made it 
mandatory for all listed companies to use, either directly or through their RTA, any RBI 
approved electronic mode of payment like ECS, NECS, NACH etc. for distribution of 
dividends or providing other cash benefits to the investors.  

Accordingly, the members, holding shares in physical form are requested to update their 
address or provide / update their bank mandate (including details of MICR, IFSC etc.) 
with the company or its Registrars & Transfer Agents (RTA), Purva Sharegistry India 
Private Limited by filling form ISR-1 along with original cancelled cheque bearing the 
name of the Member to RTA or the company.  

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to update their bank 
account details with their respective Depository Participants (“DP”). The company or 
Purva Sharegistry cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding 
shares in demat form for any change of bank particulars. Such changes are to be 
intimated only to the DPs of the Members. Further, instructions, if any, already given 
by them in respect of shares held in physical form will not be automatically applicable 
to shares held in electronic mode. 

6. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding and the 
Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all the documents referred to in the 
accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspection in 
electronic mode during the meeting by sending a request via mail well in advance. 

7. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
are requested to update their PAN with their respective Depository Participant(s) (in 
case of shares held in dematerialized form) and with Link Intime India Private Limited 
in form ISR-1 (in case of holding shares in electronic form). 

8. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders holding shares in 
physical form may file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 and for cancellation / 
variation in nomination in the prescribed Form ISR-3 with the company’s RTA. In respect 
of shares held in electronic / demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the 
respective Depository Participant. 

9. The NRI members are requested to inform the RTA, immediately of:  

i. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.  
ii. Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, 

account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not 
furnished earlier.  

 
10. In case e-mail ID of a Member is not registered with the Company/ Depository 

Participant(s) then such Member is requested to register/ update their e-mail addresses 
with the Depository Participant (in case of shares held in dematerialized form) for 
receiving all communication including annual report, notices, circulars, etc. from the 
company electronically. 

11. As required under the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2, brief 



profile of the Directors proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting and Explanatory Statement of Special Businesses to be transacted at the AGM 
pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to the notice. The 
Directors have furnished the requisite consent / declarations for their re-appointment 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. 

12. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
Since the AGM is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC, the facility for 
the appointment of proxies by the members will not be available. However, the Body 
Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

13. Members seeking clarifications on the Annual Report are requested to send in written 
queries to the Company at least one week before the date of AGM. This would enable 
the Company to compile the information and provide the replies at the AGM. 

14. In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, and 
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Company has provided a facility to its 
members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting (“e-voting”) 
facility provided by CDSL. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior 
to the AGM may participate in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. 
The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares in dematerialised mode is 
provided in the instructions for e- voting section which forms part of this Notice. The 
Board has appointed Mr. Rutul Shukla, Practicing Company Secretary (M. No. F6760 and 
COP No. 7470), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

15. The e-voting period commences on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) 
and ends on Sunday, September 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, 
members holding shares in dematerialized form, as on cut-off date, i.e. as on Monday, 
September 23, 2024 may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module will be 
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. A member will not be allowed to vote again on 
any resolutions on which vote have already been cast. 

16. The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members present in 
the AGM through VC/ OAVM and who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through 
remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through the e-voting system during the AGM. 

17. The Scrutinizer will submit their report to the Chairman of the Company (‘the Chairman’) 
or to any other person authorised by the Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny 
of the e-voting (votes casted during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-
voting). The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated 
to the stock exchanges, CDSL, and will also be displayed on the Company’s website, 
www. bahetiindustries.com. 

18. PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH   
ELECTRONIC MEANS: 

 
1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, 

the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 
dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video 
conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can attend 
and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 
  

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) 
and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 



2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, 
the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-
Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 
well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after 
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM 
will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This 
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the 
AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 
5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint 

proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, 
in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a 
State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes 
through e-voting. 
 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 
13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.bahetiindustries.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the 
websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website 
of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system 
during the AGM) i.e., www.evotingindia.com. 
 

7. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 
 

1. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-
VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 
UNDER: 

 
Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of 

individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  
 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares 

in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode 
 

(i) The voting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) 
and ends on Sunday, September 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this 
period, the shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e., Monday, 23rd September, 
2024, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
CDSL for voting thereafter. 
 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be 
entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/


 
(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities 
are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by 
the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  
 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting 
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  
 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account 
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process.  
 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of 
individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 
 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

 
Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested 
to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 
New System Myeasi Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/


3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You 
will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able 
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp. 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 
(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, 
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
    

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares    in 

physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 
 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and 
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form. 

 
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 
3) Now enter your User ID  

 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 
and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be 
used.  

 
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/


For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 
shares in Demat. 
PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders) 
 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 
Company/RTA. 

Dividend Bank 
Details 
 OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 
in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used 
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 
(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Baheti Recycling Industries Limited on which you 
choose to vote. 

 
(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 

the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 
 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 
the Voting page. 

 



(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and 
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted 
by the system. 

 
(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made 

available to scrutinizer for verification. 
 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For 
Remote Voting only. 

 
• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 

themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the 

admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the 

account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be 

delink in case of any wrong mapping. 

• It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 

Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should 

be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the 
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
manoj@bahetiindustries.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not 
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

 
2. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 

VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as 
the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of 
Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned 
above for Remote e-voting. 
  

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 
experience. 
 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
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6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the 
meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance 
atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at manoj@bahetiindustries.com. 
The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may 
send their queries in advance seven days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
manoj@bahetiindustries.com. These queries will be replied to by the company 
suitably by email.  
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system available during the AGM. 
 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 
AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
3. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 

REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 
 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to manoj@bahetiindustries.com.  
 

2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP). 

 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. 

with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-
Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

  

mailto:manoj@bahetiindustries.com
mailto:nishith@mazdalimited.com
mailto:nishith@mazdalimited.com


If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to 
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), 
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33. 
 
 

 For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 

 
Date: September 05,2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
 

                                  Sd/- 
Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 03006486 

 
 

Sd/- 
 Yash Shankerbhai Shah 

Joint Managing Director 
DIN: 09527701 

 
 

 
Registered Office: 
A/2/3, L R Appartment, 
Opp. Police Commissioner Office, 
Shahibaug, Ahmedabad-380004 
 
  



ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 04: Ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the 
financial year 2024-25 
 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment 
and recommended remuneration of Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants, to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2025. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs. 44,000/- (Forty-Four Thousand Only) 
payable to the Cost Auditor has to be approved by the shareholders of the company. The 
remuneration of the Cost Auditor shall be ratified by the shareholders. 
 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives are 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at the Item No. 04 
of the accompanying Notice of the AGM. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 04 of the Notice for 
approval by the members. 
 
Item no. 05: To increase Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Shankerlal Shah, Whole-
Time Director of the Company 
 
Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 
Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 30th May, 2024 approved the revision of 
remuneration payable to Mr. Shankerlal Shah, Whole-Time Director of the Company effective 
from 01st April, 2024, subject to the approval of Members.  
 
Further, the members are requested to authorise the Board to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions including remuneration and incremental thereof, payable to Mr. Shankerlal Shah, 
Whole-Time Director from time to time as mentioned below. 
  
The major common terms and conditions of their reappointment are as under: 
 
I. REMUNERATION: 
 
A)  Remuneration: Remuneration by way of salary, dearness allowance, perquisites and 
other allowances, or any combination thereof which shall not exceed Rs. 48,00,000/- (Rupees 
Forty-Eight Lakhs Only) per annum.  
 
B) Mr. Shankerlal Shah shall be paid the following remuneration / perquisites w.e.f. 01st 

April, 2024 subject to overall ceiling on managerial remuneration as mentioned 
hereinabove. 

 
a) Salary: Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum; 

 
b) Perquisites included in salary 

 
Leave Travel Concession for himself and family once in a year as per rules of 
Company.  

 



c) Perquisites not included in salary: In addition to the salary, Mr. Shankerlal 
Shah will be entitled to the following perquisites; 

 
1. Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to 

the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the 
Income tax Act, 1961. 

 
2. Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each 

completed year of service;  
 
3. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure. 
 
4. Free use of Company’s Car with Driver for office use. 
 
5. Reimbursement of actual Entertainment expenditure incurred in 

connection with the business of the Company on production of bills. 
 
6. Computer and / or Laptop for office use. 

 
II. The Whole-Time Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred by 

him in connection with the business of the Company.    
 

III. The Whole-Time Director shall not, so long as he functions as such, become interested 
or otherwise concerned directly or through his spouse and/or minor children in any 
business with the Company without the prior approval of the Central Government. 

 
IV. DUTIES: 
 

Mr. Shankerlal Shah must devote adequate time and attention to the Company’s 
business. Mr. Shankerlal Shah must always comply with the directions given and 
regulations made by the Board and he will faithfully serve the Company and use his 
best endeavors to promote its interests. 

 
V. TERMINATION: 
 

The Company or Mr. Shankerlal Shah may bring to an end this Agreement before its 
term is over by giving a notice of the intention to terminate is come into effect. If such 
notice is given, the Agreement will come to an end when the 3 months’ notice period 
is over. 
 
As per the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 consent of the Company accorded by Special Resolution 
is necessary for holding office as Whole-Time Director of the Company on 
remuneration. 
 
The terms and conditions mentioned in the above explanatory statement may be 
treated as abstract of the terms and conditions under the respective provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
As per the Sub-clause B (iv) of Part II Section II of Schedule V, the company is required 
to furnish the following information in the Explanatory Statement; 

  



 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Nature of Industry Recycling of Aluminium Scrap (Mfg.) 
2. Date or expected date of 

commencement of Commercial   
Production. 

Not Applicable 

3. In case of new companies, expected 
date of commencement of activities as 
per project approved by financial 
institutions appearing in the prospectus. 

Not Applicable 

4. Financial performance based on given 
indications. 
  Sales (Net of Excise) 
Net Profit before Tax 
Net Profit After Tax 
 

31-03-2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

31-03-2023 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

42.934.49 
928.57 
720.08 

35,996.29 
695.76 
528.40 

5. Foreign investments or collaborators, if 
any. 

Not Applicable 

   
II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Background Details 

 
He is looking after strategic and top 
management of the Company  

2. Past Remuneration / Perquisites 
 

2,00,000/- per month  

3. Recognition or Awards 
 

- 

4. Job Profile and his Suitability 
 

He is responsible for Management 
Decision, Project Development, Finance 
and the overall performance of the 
company 

5. Remuneration/perquisites proposed 
 

A) Remuneration: Remuneration by 
way of salary, dearness allowance, 
perquisites and other allowances, or 
any combination thereof which shall not 
exceed Rs. 48,00,000/- (Rupees Forty-
Eight Lakhs Only) per annum.  
 
B) Mr. Shankerlal Shah shall be paid the 
following remuneration / perquisites 
w.e.f 01st April, 2024 subject to overall 
ceiling on managerial remuneration as 
mentioned hereinabove. 
 
a) Salary : Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum; 
 
b) Perquisites included in salary 
 
Leave Travel Concession for himself and 
family once in a year as per rules of 
Company. 



 
c) Perquisites not included in 
salary: In addition to the salary, Mr. 
Shankerlal Shah will be entitled to the 
following perquisites; 
 
1. Contribution to Provident Fund, 

Superannuation Fund or Annuity 
Fund to the extent these either 
singly or put together are not 
taxable under the Income tax Act, 
1961. 

 
2. Gratuity payable at a rate not 

exceeding half a month's salary for 
each completed year of service;  

 
3. Encashment of leave at the end of 

the tenure. 
 
4. Free use of Company’s Car with 

Driver for office use. 
 
5. Reimbursement of actual 

Entertainment expenditure incurred 
in connection with the business of 
the Company on production of bills. 

 
6. Computer and / or Laptop for office 

use. 
 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the company, 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details would 
be with respect to the country of his 
origin) 

The proposed is reasonable considering 
the industry comparable and future 
growth of the Company. 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any, 
 

Mr. Shankerlal Shah is a director of 
Company and is holding 28,84,000 
Equity shares of the Company in his 
individual Capacity. 

 
III. OTHER INFORMATION: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits 

 
N.A. 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement. 
 
 

N.A 

3. Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms 

N.A 



 
 

 
IV. DISCLOSURES: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. All elements of remuneration package 

such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock 
options, pension, etc., of all the directors 
 

N.A. 

2. Details of fixed component and 
performance linked incentives along with 
the performance criteria 
 

N.A. 

3. Service contracts, notice period, 
severance fees. 
 

N.A. 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether 
the same has been issued at a discount 
as well as the period over which accrued 
and over which exercisable 

N.A. 

 
Resolution of the Board of Directors appointing Mr. Shankerlal Shah as Whole-Time Director 
and other relevant documents of appointment are open for inspection at the Registered Office 
of the Company between 11.00 A. M. to 5.00 P. M. on any working day prior to the date of 
the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Your Board recommends this resolution for your approval.  
 
Mr. Shankerlal Shah is interested in the resolutions set out respectively at Item No. 5 of the 
Notice with regard to his respective appointment. The relatives of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal 
Shah and Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah may be deemed to be interested in the resolutions set 
out respectively at Item No. 5 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if 
any, in the Company.  
 
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise. 
 
Item no. 06: To increase Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal 
Shah, Managing Director of the Company 
 
Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 
Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 30th May, 2024 approved the revision of 
remuneration payable to Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah, Managing Director of the Company 
effective from 01st April, 2024, subject to the approval of Members.  
 
Further, the members are requested to authorise the Board to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions including remuneration and incremental thereof, payable to Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah, Managing Director from time to time as mentioned below. 
  
The major common terms and conditions of their reappointment are as under: 
  



 
I. REMUNERATION: 
 
A)  Remuneration: Remuneration by way of salary, dearness allowance, perquisites and 

other allowances, or any combination thereof which shall not exceed Rs. 48,00,000/- 
(Rupees Forty-Eight Lakhs Only) per annum.  

 
B) Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah shall be paid the following remuneration / perquisites 

w.e.f. 01st April, 2024 subject to overall ceiling on managerial remuneration as 
mentioned hereinabove. 

 
a) Salary: Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum; 

 
b) Perquisites included in salary 

 
Leave Travel Concession for himself and family once in a year as per rules of 
Company.  

 
c) Perquisites not included in salary: In addition to the salary, Mr. Balkishan 

Shankerlal Shah will be entitled to the following perquisites; 
 

1. Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to 
the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the 
Income tax Act, 1961. 

 
2. Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each 

completed year of service;  
 
3. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure. 
 
4. Free use of Company’s Car with Driver for office use. 
 
5. Reimbursement of actual Entertainment expenditure incurred in 

connection with the business of the Company on production of bills. 
 
6. Computer and / or Laptop for office use. 

 
II. The Managing Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred by 

him in connection with the business of the Company.    
 

III. The Managing Director shall not, so long as he functions as such, become interested 
or otherwise concerned directly or through his spouse and/or minor children in any 
business with the Company without the prior approval of the Central Government. 

 
IV. DUTIES: 

 
Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah must devote adequate time and attention to the 
Company’s business. Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah must always comply with the 
directions given and regulations made by the Board and he will faithfully serve the 
Company and use his best endeavors to promote its interests. 

 
V. TERMINATION: 

 
The Company or Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah may bring to an end this 
Agreement before its term is over by giving a notice of the intention to terminate 



is come into effect. If such notice is given, the Agreement will come to an end 
when the 3 months’ notice period is over. 
 
As per the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 consent of the Company accorded by Special 
Resolution is necessary for holding office as Managing Director of the Company on 
remuneration. 
 
The terms and conditions mentioned in the above explanatory statement may be 
treated as abstract of the terms and conditions under the respective provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
As per the Sub-clause B (iv) of Part II Section II of Schedule V, the company is 
required to furnish the following information in the Explanatory Statement; 

 
VI. GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Nature of Industry Recycling of Aluminium Scrap (Mfg.) 
2. Date or expected date of 

commencement of Commercial   
Production. 

Not Applicable 

3. In case of new companies, expected 
date of commencement of activities as 
per project approved by financial 
institutions appearing in the prospectus. 

Not Applicable 

4. Financial performance based on given 
indications. 
  Sales (Net of Excise) 
Net Profit before Tax 
Net Profit After Tax 
 

31-03-2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

31-03-2023 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

42.934.49 
928.57 
720.08 

35,996.29 
695.76 
528.40 

5. Foreign investments or collaborators, if 
any. 

Not Applicable 

   
VII. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Background Details 

 
He is looking after strategic and top 
management of the Company  

2. Past Remuneration / Perquisites 
 

2,00,000/- per month  

3. Recognition or Awards 
 

- 

4. Job Profile and his Suitability 
 

He is responsible for Management 
Decision, Project Development, Finance 
and the overall performance of the 
company 

5. Remuneration/perquisites proposed 
 

A) Remuneration: Remuneration by 
way of salary, dearness allowance, 
perquisites and other allowances, or 
any combination thereof which shall not 
exceed Rs. 48,00,000/- (Rupees Forty-
Eight Lakhs Only) per annum.  



 
B) Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah shall 
be paid the following remuneration / 
perquisites w.e.f 01st April, 2024 
subject to overall ceiling on managerial 
remuneration as mentioned 
hereinabove. 
 
a) Salary : Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum; 
 
b) Perquisites included in salary 
 
Leave Travel Concession for himself and 
family once in a year as per rules of 
Company. 
 
c) Perquisites not included in 
salary: In addition to the salary, Mr. 
Balkishan Shankerlal Shah will be 
entitled to the following perquisites; 
 
1. Contribution to Provident Fund, 

Superannuation Fund or Annuity 
Fund to the extent these either 
singly or put together are not 
taxable under the Income tax Act, 
1961. 

 
2. Gratuity payable at a rate not 

exceeding half a month's salary for 
each completed year of service;  

 
3. Encashment of leave at the end of 

the tenure. 
 
4. Free use of Company’s Car with 

Driver for office use. 
 
5. Reimbursement of actual 

Entertainment expenditure incurred 
in connection with the business of 
the Company on production of bills. 

 
6. Computer and / or Laptop for office 

use. 
 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the company, 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details would 
be with respect to the country of his 
origin) 

The proposed is reasonable considering 
the industry comparable and future 
growth of the Company. 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 

Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah is a 
director of Company and is holding 



relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any, 
 

15,00,000 Equity shares of the 
Company in his individual Capacity. 

 
VIII. OTHER INFORMATION: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits 

 
N.A. 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement. 
 
 

N.A 

3. Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms 
 
 

N.A 

 
IX. DISCLOSURES: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. All elements of remuneration package 

such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock 
options, pension, etc., of all the directors 
 

N.A. 

2. Details of fixed component and 
performance linked incentives along with 
the performance criteria 
 

N.A. 

3. Service contracts, notice period, 
severance fees. 
 

N.A. 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether 
the same has been issued at a discount 
as well as the period over which accrued 
and over which exercisable 

N.A. 

 
Resolution of the Board of Directors appointing Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah as Managing 
Director and other relevant documents of appointment are open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company between 11.00 A. M. to 5.00 P. M. on any working day prior 
to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Your Board recommends this resolution for your approval.  
 
Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah is interested in the resolutions set out respectively at Item No. 
6 of the Notice with regard to his respective appointment. The relatives of Mr. Shankerlal 
Shah and Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah may be deemed to be interested in the resolutions set 
out respectively at Item No. 6 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if 
any, in the Company.  
 
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise. 
 



Item no. 07: To increase Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah, 
Joint Managing Director of the Company 
 
Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 
Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 30th May, 2024 approved the revision of 
remuneration payable to Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah, Joint Managing Director of the Company 
effective from 01st April, 2024, subject to the approval of Members.  
 
Further, the members are requested to authorise the Board to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions including remuneration and incremental thereof, payable to Mr. Yash Shankerlal 
Shah, Joint Managing Director from time to time as mentioned below. 
  
The major common terms and conditions of their remuneration are as under: 
 
I. REMUNERATION: 
 
A)  Remuneration: Remuneration by way of salary, dearness allowance, perquisites and 

other allowances, or any combination thereof which shall not exceed Rs. 48,00,000/- 
(Rupees Forty-Eight Lakhs Only) per annum.  

 
B) Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah shall be paid the following remuneration / perquisites w.e.f. 

01st April, 2024 subject to overall ceiling on managerial remuneration as mentioned 
hereinabove. 

 
a) Salary: Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum; 

 
b) Perquisites included in salary 

 
Leave Travel Concession for himself and family once in a year as per rules of 
Company.  

 
c) Perquisites not included in salary: In addition to the salary, Mr. Yash 

Shankerlal Shah will be entitled to the following perquisites; 
 

1. Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to 
the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the 
Income tax Act, 1961. 

 
2. Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each 

completed year of service;  
 
3. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure. 
 
4. Free use of Company’s Car with Driver for office use. 
 
5. Reimbursement of actual Entertainment expenditure incurred in 

connection with the business of the Company on production of bills. 
 
6. Computer and / or Laptop for office use. 

 
II. The Joint Managing Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses 

incurred by him in connection with the business of the Company.    
 

III. The Joint Managing Director shall not, so long as he functions as such, become 
interested or otherwise concerned directly or through his spouse and/or minor 



children in any business with the Company without the prior approval of the Central 
Government. 

 
IV. DUTIES: 

 
Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah must devote adequate time and attention to the 
Company’s business. Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah must always comply with the 
directions given and regulations made by the Board and he will faithfully serve the 
Company and use his best endeavors to promote its interests. 

 
V. TERMINATION: 

 
The Company or Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah may bring to an end this Agreement 
before its term is over by giving a notice of the intention to terminate is come into 
effect. If such notice is given, the Agreement will come to an end when the 3 
months’ notice period is over. 
 
As per the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 consent of the Company accorded by Special 
Resolution is necessary for holding office as Managing Director of the Company on 
remuneration. 
 
The terms and conditions mentioned in the above explanatory statement may be 
treated as abstract of the terms and conditions under the respective provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
As per the Sub-clause B (iv) of Part II Section II of Schedule V, the company is 
required to furnish the following information in the Explanatory Statement; 

 
VI. GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Nature of Industry Recycling of Aluminium Scrap (Mfg.) 
2. Date or expected date of 

commencement of Commercial   
Production. 

Not Applicable 

3. In case of new companies, expected 
date of commencement of activities as 
per project approved by financial 
institutions appearing in the prospectus. 

Not Applicable 

4. Financial performance based on given 
indications. 
  Sales (Net of Excise) 
Net Profit before Tax 
Net Profit After Tax 
 

31-03-2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

31-03-2023 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

42.934.49 
928.57 
720.08 

35,996.29 
695.76 
528.40 

5. Foreign investments or collaborators, if 
any. 

Not Applicable 

   
VII. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Background Details 

 
He is looking after strategic and top 
management of the Company  



2. Past Remuneration / Perquisites 
 

2,00,000/- per month  

3. Recognition or Awards 
 

- 

4. Job Profile and his Suitability 
 

He is responsible for Management 
Decision, Project Development, Finance 
and the overall performance of the 
company 

5. Remuneration/perquisites proposed 
 

A) Remuneration: Remuneration by 
way of salary, dearness allowance, 
perquisites and other allowances, or 
any combination thereof which shall not 
exceed Rs. 48,00,000/- (Rupees Forty-
Eight Lakhs Only) per annum.  
 
B) Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah shall be 
paid the following remuneration / 
perquisites w.e.f 01st April, 2024 
subject to overall ceiling on managerial 
remuneration as mentioned 
hereinabove. 
 
a) Salary : Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum; 
 
b) Perquisites included in salary 
 
Leave Travel Concession for himself and 
family once in a year as per rules of 
Company. 
 
c) Perquisites not included in 
salary: In addition to the salary, Mr. 
Yash Shankerlal Shah will be entitled to 
the following perquisites; 
 
1. Contribution to Provident Fund, 

Superannuation Fund or Annuity 
Fund to the extent these either 
singly or put together are not 
taxable under the Income tax Act, 
1961. 

 
2. Gratuity payable at a rate not 

exceeding half a month's salary for 
each completed year of service;  

 
3. Encashment of leave at the end of 

the tenure. 
 
4. Free use of Company’s Car with 

Driver for office use. 
 
5. Reimbursement of actual 

Entertainment expenditure incurred 



in connection with the business of 
the Company on production of bills. 

 
6. Computer and / or Laptop for office 

use. 
 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the company, 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details would 
be with respect to the country of his 
origin) 

The proposed is reasonable considering 
the industry comparable and future 
growth of the Company. 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any, 
 

Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah is a director 
of Company and is holding 15,00,000 
Equity shares of the Company in his 
individual Capacity. 

 
VIII. OTHER INFORMATION: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits 

 
N.A. 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement. 
 
 

N.A. 

3. Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms 
 
 

N.A. 

 
IX. DISCLOSURES: 

 
No PARTICULARS DETAILS 
1. All elements of remuneration package 

such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock 
options, pension, etc., of all the directors 
 

N.A. 

2. Details of fixed component and 
performance linked incentives along with 
the performance criteria 
 

N.A. 

3. Service contracts, notice period, 
severance fees. 
 

N.A. 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether 
the same has been issued at a discount 
as well as the period over which accrued 
and over which exercisable 

N.A. 

 
Resolution of the Board of Directors appointing Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah as Joint Managing 
Director and other relevant documents of appointment are open for inspection at the 



Registered Office of the Company between 11.00 A. M. to 5.00 P. M. on any working day prior 
to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Your Board recommends this resolution for your approval.  
 
Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah is interested in the resolutions set out respectively at Item No. 6 of 
the Notice with regard to his respective appointment. The relatives of Mr. Shankerlal Shah 
and Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah may be deemed to be interested in the resolutions set out 
respectively at Item No. 7 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, 
in the Company.  
 
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise. 
 

 For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 

 
Date: September 05,2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
 

                                  Sd/- 
Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 03006486 

 
 

Sd/- 
 Yash Shankerbhai Shah 

Joint Managing Director 
DIN: 09527701 

 
 

Registered Office: 
A/2/3, L R Appartment, 
Opp. Police Commissioner Office, 
Shahibaug, Ahmedabad-380004 
 



Annexure to the Explanatory Statement pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing 
Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India, information about the Directors proposed to be Appointed / Re-Appointed is 
furnished below: 
 
Name of the 
Director 

Mr. Shankerlal 
Bansilal Shah 

Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah 

Mr. Yash Shankerlal 
Shah 

Directors 
Identification 
Number 
(DIN) 

 
00131715 

 
03006486 

 
09527701 

Nationality Indian Indian Indian 

Date of Birth 
and Age 

17/02/1966 
58 years 

10/07/1988 
36 years 

30/07/1993 
31 years 

Qualification Higher Secondary B. Com, PGDM B. Com, PGDM 

Experience 
and 
Expertise 

Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal 
Shah is the Chairman 
and Whole Time Director 
of our Company. He has 
been on the Board since 
incorporation. He is a 
visionary entrepreneur 
and has played a pivotal 
role in expanding 
business operations of 
our Company. He has a 
work experience of more 
than 35 years in the 
metal industry. He 
currently looks after the 
overall management and 
administration of the 
Company Under his 
guidance, our Company 
has witnessed 
continuous growth. 

Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal 
Shah is the Managing 
Director of our Company. 
He has completed his 
Bachelor of Commerce 
from Gujarat University 
in 2008 and post 
Graduate Program in 
Management (Family 
Managed Business) from 
S.P. Jain Institute of 
Management and 
Research, Mumbai in 
2010. He has an 
experience of around 10 
years in the metal 
industry. He currently 
overseas and controls 
the production and 
purchase operations of 
our Company. Under his 
guidance, our Company 
has witnessed 
continuous growth. 

Mr. Yash Shankerbhai 
Shah is the Joint 
Managing Director of our 
Company. He has 
completed his Bachelor 
of Commerce from 
Ahmedabad University in 
2014 and post Graduate 
Program in Global Family 
Managed Business from 
SP Jain School of Global 
Management in 2016. He 
has an experience of 
around 6 years in the 
metal industry. He 
currently overseas and 
controls the marketing 
and finance operations of 
our Company. Under his 
guidance, our Company 
has witnessed 
continuous growth. 

Date of first 
Appointment 
on the Board 
of the 
Company 

28/12/1994 10/10/2017 07/03/2022 

Shareholding 
in 
the Company 

28,84,000 Equity Shares 15,00,000 Equity Shares 15,00,000 Equity Shares 

List of 
Directorship 
held in other 
companies 

None 



Membership / 
Chairmanship 
in 
Committees 
of other 
companies as 
on date 

None 

Relationships 
between 
Directors 
inter-se 

Relative of Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah, 
Managing Director, Mr. 
Yash Shankerbhai Shah, 
Joint Managing Director 
and Mrs. Ayushi Yash 
Shah, Director of the 
Company 

Relative of Mr. 
Shankerlal Shah, Whole-
Time Director, Mr. Yash 
Shankerbhai Shah, Joint 
Managing Director and 
Mrs. Ayushi Yash Shah, 
Director of the Company 

Relative of Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah, 
Managing Director, Mr. 
Shankerbhai Shah, Joint 
Whole-Time Director and 
Mrs. Ayushi Yash Shah, 
Director of the Company 

 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
Dear Shareholders, 
 
Your directors are pleased to present the Annual Report together the Audited Financial Statements of 
your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024: 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
The Audited Financial Statements of your Company as of March 31, 2024 have been prepared in 
accordance with the relevant applicable Accounting Standards, Regulation 33 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("Listing Regulations"), and the applicable of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act").  

 
(Rs. in Lakhs except EPS) 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Revenue from Operations 42,934.49 35,996.29 
Other Income 10.55 60.11 
Total Revenue 42,945.04 36,056.38 
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation and Amortization 
Expense and Taxes 

2,043.81 1375.66 

Less:- A) Finance Cost 1,011.69 599.65 
Less:- B) Depreciation and Amortization Expense 103.55 80.25 
Profit / (Loss) before Extra-Ordinary Items and tax 928.57 695.76 
Add/(Less): Extra-Ordinary Item - - 
Profit/(Loss) after Extra Ordinary Items and before tax 928.57 695.76 
Total Tax Expense 208.48 167.36 
Share of Associate’s Profit - - 
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 720.08 528.40 
Earnings Per Share 
Basic / Diluted (Amount in Rs.) 

6.94 6.81 

 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 
 
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 the company has achieved a Revenue of Rs. 42,934.49 Lacs, and 
it has shown the uptrend by 19.27% over the last year of Rs. 35,996.29 Lacs. The profit after tax for 
the year was Rs. 720.08 Lacs, registering the uptrend growth of 36.27% over the profit of Rs. 528.40 
Lacs in Financial Year 2022-23.  
 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURE/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company. 
  
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, there has been no change in the Company’s nature of 
business. 



  
TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3)(J) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the 
year under review. 
 
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Details of loans and guarantees given, investments made and securities provided, if any, as covered 
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS  
 

(a) Industry Structure and Developments:  
 
Aluminium is more environment-friendly than steel, plastic and other materials. It has widespread 
uses throughout the economy and is equally important to both the industrial and consumer sectors. 
Key sectors to drive aluminium consumption in India are Auto, Power, Electronics, Railways, 
Aerospace & Defence Construction, Solar Energy and Aluminium packaging. Aluminium is 100% 
recyclable and consumes 95% less energy and releases 95% less greenhouse gases as compared to 
primary aluminium and there is no loss of properties or quality during the recycling process. 
 
India's economy has significant growth potential driven by various factors, i.e. urbanization, growing 
digital economy, initiatives like "Make in India", increase of infrastructure projects, agriculture 
modernization, attracting foreign investment, ease of doing business, healthcare and pharmaceuticals 
services, expanding international trade and participating in global supply chains, tourism and 
advancements in space technology & satellite communication. India is one of the fastest growing 
economies globally, in addition to also being one of the fastest emerging markets. Thus, there is a 
vast scope for the industry to develop under the current scenario. 
 
The Indian economy performed exceptionally well compared with the rest of the world. India is set to 
remain the bright spot in global GDP growth, according to IMF. In December 2022, India also 
assumed G20 presidency with an ambition to unite the world under the theme “Vasudhaiva 
Kutumbakam” or “One Earth - One Family - One Future". This is an opportunity to showcase the 
nation’s global leadership amidst growing uncertainty and economic crisis. 
 
The Company is involved primarily in segment of manufacturing and trading of non-ferrous metals 
although major part of the business is covered by aluminium products. Company’s main products line 
includes Aluminium Wire Rod, Aluminium Deox, Cored Wire, Aluminium Alloy Ingots, Ferro 
Titanium, and Conductor & Cables. The Company is operating in multiple products of aluminium 
and this multiplicity of operations minimizes the operating eventualities. A considerably wide 
geographical presence and reach, both domestic and international, have helped the Company to 
attempt de-risking its business and meet the risks with suitable precaution. Your company is well 
positioned to capitalize on emerging opportunity due to significant competitive strength, acquired 
over the years. 
 
 
 



 
(b) Opportunities & threats: 
 
Opportunities 
 
India continues to forge ahead on its path of progress, creating remarkable opportunities for the non-
ferrous metal sector. Non-Ferrous Metal Industry is one of the key sectors of Indian economy 
contributing significantly to nation’s GDP and providing employment to large number of people, 
directly or indirectly as it meets the requirements of wide range of key industries and also plays vital 
role for country’s vision for Aatmanirbhar Bharat. The Government of India continues to enhance 
international co-operation for promoting FDI and improve ease of doing business in the country. 
 
India is one of the fastest growing economies in the world. Brent oil prices are expected to remain 
range bound in 2024, given the continuing war in Ukraine and sanctions imposed in response by the 
USA and European Union. India meets nearly 80% of its oil needs through imports. High oil prices 
will also have a trickledown effect on the prices paid by consumers for goods and services. 
 
India’s manufacturing sector also outperformed the rest of the world, projecting the country as a 
potential manufacturing hub. Stable political conditions, supportive policy schemes, strong domestic 
consumption and growing presence of skilled professionals support this ambition. The GOI’s focus to 
make the country an attractive destination for business has been a key enabler of robust economic 
performance. 
 
In FY 2023-24, the Company delivered a resilient and strong performance, despite macroeconomic 
challenges, tough market conditions and global uncertainties. The Company has achieved sales of 
worth Rs. 42,934.49 Lakhs. The Company has significant spare capacity to increase its production 
and sales level. Accordingly, the Company has geared-up its marketing and production activities. 
This performance was mainly driven by higher volumes and better product mix, lower input costs, 
stability in operations and cost-saving actions. 
 
Our business strategy prioritizes reaching our goals in a maximally responsible manner. We 
recognise the value of a diverse workforce. We remain committed to make an even bigger difference 
by reimagining and improving our work, investing in our people and welding a sustainable future. 
 
Threats 
 
When you grab the opportunities based on your strength, you are bound to be accompanied by the 
risks and threats attached with them. The Company is exposed to the following type of risks. 

 
 Economic Downturns 
 Market Competition 
 Cyber Security Threats 
 Reputational Damage 
 Technological Disruption 
 Natural Disasters 
 Regulatory Changes 
 Financial Risks 
 Supply Chain Disruptions 
 Global Events 

 Employee Issues 
 Environmental Concerns 
 Supplier Reliability 
 Political Instability 
 Imposition of High 

Import Tariffs & Customs 
Duties 



 
These factors can be main drivers behind the pressure on the Company in terms of operation and 
profitability 

 
(c) Segment-wise Performance:  
  
The company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of non-ferrous metal, 
which constitute a single reportable segment. 
 
(d) Outlook:  
 
India continues to be the preferred hub of global companies across a wide range of industries due to 
multiple capabilities and low costs. India has become the innovation partner of many global companies 
due to its unique value proposition. India continues to offer innovative business models to lessen the 
impact of the economic downturn. This confirms the market is in a strong position to perform 
throughout the year. 
 
(e) Risk and concerns:  
 
The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and it is committed to manage the 
risks in a proactive and efficient manner. Risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process 
within the Organization. The state of external environment, including factors like interest rates, 
inflation, and growth in economic activity, rationalization of tax structure, job creation & retention of 
manpower and consumer sentiment continues to be the biggest source of threat as well as opportunity 
for the Company. Any slowdown in the economic activity in the Country, significant job losses or high 
rates of inflation can severely impact the consumption and therefore growth of the Company. 
 
The Company's business is exposed to many internal and external risks and it has consequently put in 
place robust systems and processes along with appropriate review mechanism to actively monitor, 
manage and mitigate these risks. The Company takes a structured approach to the identification, 
quantification and hedging of such risks by developing comprehensive Risk Management Policy of the 
Company which is periodically reviewed by the management. 

 
(f) Internal control systems, its adequacy and risk management: 
 
Your Company has an internal control system commensurate with the size, scale, and complexity of its 
operations. The aim of the internal control system is to manage business risks with a view to enhance 
shareholder value and safeguard the Company's assets.  
 
Your Company has in place a robust mechanism for internal audits led by with a dedicated Assurance 
& Control Function comprising specialists. The Internal Auditor is duly appointed by the Audit 
Committee and Board., viz. M/s. Wadhawan Pandya & Co. for the business. The Audit Committee 
discusses audit plans and significant audit observations made by the internal auditor for necessary 
corrective actions. Our internal financial control framework is designed to ensure the accuracy and 
reliability of our financial and other records. We have identified and documented key risks and 
controls for each process related to financial operations and reporting. An extensive programme of 
internal audits and management reviews supplement the process of the framework. 
 
During the financial year under review, no significant deficiencies/material weaknesses that might 
impact financial statements have been reported by the Internal Auditor as at the Balance Sheet date.  



 
(g) Financial performance with respect to operational performance: 
 
The discussion covers the financial results and other developments during the year under review in 
respect of the company’s published result. Highlights below are given only for comparison. 
 
Financial Highlights for operating performance of financial year 2023-24: 

                    
 (Rs. In lacs) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 
Total Income 42,945.04 36,056.38 
EBITDA 2,043.81 1,375.66 
PBT 928.57 695.76 
PAT 720.08 528.40 

 
The financial ratios are mentioned as note no. 27 in the notes to accounts section. 

 
(h) Material developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations, and Health, Safety 

& Environment: 
 

The company believes that the human capital is the key contributor for the business growth and 
competitiveness. This includes not only the employees of the Company, but the skilled labour engaged 
at our factory units and through sub-contracting. 

 
The number of employees as on 31st March, 2024 was 242 against 256 employees on the pay roll of 
the company during the previous financial year. 

 
The company has during the year under review maintain excellent industrial relations at all levels. This 
has ensured that we have a committed and dedicated workforce with a high level of fervor.  
 
(i)  Key Financial Ratios for 2023-24 compared with 2022-23 
  
 Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 
Profitability ratios   
a) Operating profit margin  4.81% 3.81% 
b) Net profit margin 1.68% 1.47% 
c) Return on net worth 17.30% 15.45% 
Working capital ratios   
d) Debtors turnover (days) 44 47 
e) Inventory turnover (days) 61 43 
Gearing ratios   
f) Interest coverage 1.81 2.02 
g) Debt / equity 2.38 1.99 
Liquidity ratios   
h) Current ratio 1.30 1.41 

 



 
SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY 
 
During the year under review, the Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital and Paid-Up 
Capital in compliance with applicable provisions of the Act, year-end share capital is mentioned 
hereunder:  
 
a) Authorized Capital: 
Rs. 10,50,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crore Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 1,05,00,000 (One Crore Five 
Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rupees 10 /- each. 
 
b) Issued Capital, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: 
Rs. 10,36,85,300/- (Rupees Ten Crore Thirty-Six Lakhs Eighty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Only) 
divided into 1,03,68,530 (One Crore Three Lakh Sixty Eight Thousand Five Hundred Thirty) Equity 
Shares of Rupees 10 /- each. 
 
DIVIDEND 

 
Your Company considering the profitability and financial position of the company and with a view to 
reward its members for showing faith in the management, the Board of Directors recommended its 
maiden Final Dividend @ 5% i.e., Rs. 0.5/- per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each, subject to 
approval by the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The said dividend pay-out is in 
compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standard -3 (SS-3) on Dividend issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND 
 
Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. 
Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF).  
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Act the Board of Directors of the Company confirms that: 

 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any; 
 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for 
that period; 
 

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
 

e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL 
 
• BOARD COMPOSITION 
 

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of executive and non-executive 
directors including independent directors, which plays a crucial role in board processes and 
provides independent judgment on issues of strategy and performance. The board of directors of 
the Company consist of eminent individuals from diverse fields having experience and expertise in 
their respective fields. As on March 31, 2024, board comprises of 6 (six) directors out of which 3 
(three) are executive directors, 3 (Three) are non-executive directors including 2 (Two) 
independent directors. Independent Directors are appointed in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act, as amended from time to time. The maximum tenure of the independent 
directors is in compliance with the Act.  
 
None of the directors on the board holds the directorship in more than 20 (twenty) companies and 
out of them none of the directors holds the directorship in more than 10 (ten) public companies at a 
time, pursuant to Regulation 165 of the Act.  
 
The table below gives the composition of the Board and the directorships held by each of the 
directors of the Company at the end of Financial Year 2023-24: 

 
Name of Director Category Date of 

Appointment 
Number of Shares 
held in the Company 

Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 
Managing Director  
(DIN: 03006486) 

Promoter Executive 10/10/2017 15,00,000 
 

Mr. Yash Shankerbhai Shah 
Joint Managing Director  
(DIN: 09527701) 

Promoter Executive 07/03/2022 15,00,000 
 

Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah 
Whole-Time Director 
(DIN: 00131715) 

Promoter Executive 28/12/1994 28,84,000 
 

Mrs. Ayushi Yash Shah 
Director 
(DIN: 09527729) 

Promoter Group Non-
Executive Director 

 

07/03/2022 3,31,990 
 

Mr. Satya Narain Mittal 
Director 
(DIN: 09533705) 

Non-Executive 
(Independent) 

25/03/2022 - 

Mr. Jaimish Govindbhai Patel 
Director 
(DIN: 09647742) 

Non-Executive 
(Independent) 

27/06/2022 - 

 
As on March 31, 2024, none of the Directors of the Company were related to each other except Mr. 
Balkishan Shankerlal Shah, Managing Director, Mr. Yash Shankerbhai Shah, Joint Managing 
Director, Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah, Whole-Time Director and Mrs. Ayushi Yash Shah, 
Director who are related to each other as per the provisions of the Act.  

 
• MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

• During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, 6 (Six) meetings of board of directors of the 
Company. 
 

• The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act. 



 
• The following meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024: 
 

The following Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2023-24: 
 

SN Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 
1.  30/05/2023 6 6 
2.  06/09/2023 6 6 
3.  10/11/2023 6 6 
4.  15/02/2024 6 6 
5.  09/03/2024 6 6 
6.  29/03/2024 6 6 

 
PRESENCE/ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS IN THE MEETINGS 
 

SN Name of Director Board Meeting AGM 
  No. of 

Meeting 
Entitled to 

Held 

No. of 
Meeting 
attended 

% (30/09/2023) 

1 Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 06 06 100.00 Yes 
2 Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah 06 06 100.00 Yes 
3 Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah 06 06 100.00 Yes 
4 Mrs. Ayushi Yash Shah 06 06 100.00 No 
5 Mr. Satya Narain Mittal    06 06 100.00 No 
6 Mr. Jaimish Govindbhai Patel 06 06 100.00 Yes 

 
• APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR:  

 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 152(6) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah (DIN: 03006486) retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. The 
Directors recommend the resolution relating to the re-appointment of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal 
Shah (DIN: 03006486) (who is liable to retire by rotation), as Director of the Company.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings, the requisite details of Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah is furnished in the 
Annexure to the Notice of the 30th AGM. 
 

• DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
In accordance with Section 149(6) of the Act, its implementing regulations, and Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors have signed declarations 
attesting to their compliance with the independence requirements. 
 
The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Code for 
Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV of the Act. There has been no change in the 
circumstances affecting their status of Independent Directors of the Company. The Independent 
Directors have also given declaration of compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, with 
respect to their name appearing in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained by The 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs and that they are exempt / have cleared the Online Proficiency 
Assessment Test, as applicable. 
 



In the opinion of the board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their 
status as independent directors and the board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise and experience 
(including proficiency in terms of Section 150 (1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder) to all 
independent directors on the board. 
 

• MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  
 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on November 10, 2023. inter alia, to 
discuss:  
 
a) Review of the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 
whole.  
b) Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into the account of the views 
of the Executive and Non- Executive Directors.  
c) Assess the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.  

 
      All the Independent Directors were present in the meeting. 

 
• FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have 
been familiarized about the Company by the functional heads of various departments of the 
Company which includes detailed presentations on the vision and mission of the Company, its 
operations, business plans, technologies and also future outlook of the entire industry. 
 

• DISQUALIFICATIONS OF DIRECTORS 
 

During the financial year 2023-2024 under review the Company has received Form DIR-8 from all 
Directors as required under the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act read with Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 that none of the Directors of your 
Company is disqualified; to hold office as director disqualified as per provision of Section 164(2) 
of the Act and debarred from holding the office of a Director pursuant to any order of the SEBI or 
any such authority in terms of SEBI letter dated June 14, 2018 and NSE circular dated June 20, 
2018 on the subject “Enforcement of SEBI orders regarding appointment of Directors by Listed 
Companies”. 
 
The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures, as required under various 
provisions of the Act. 

 
• KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
Pursuant to provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, the following 
persons are to be Key Managerial Personnel of the company; 

 
a. Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal Shah, Chairman and Whole-Time Director 
b. Mr. Balkishan Shankerlal Shah, Managing Director 
c. Mr. Yash Shankerlal Shah, Joint Managing Director 
d. Mr. Manojkumar Jagdishchandra Shah, Chief Financial Officer 
e. Mrs. Mansi Harsh Darji, Company Secretary  

 
During the year under review, there is no other change in the Key Managerial personnel of the 
Company. 

 



• COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD  
 

The Board receives regular communication regarding policy-related issues as well as other 
pertinent and important information. Your board currently has three (3) committees, namely the 
Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee, to look into various aspects for which they have been established in order to provide 
better corporate governance and transparency. The terms of reference of these committees are in 
line with Act. 

 
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was constituted with the requirement of the 
Section 177 of the Act.  
 
During the year under review, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held i.e. on May 30 
2023, September 06 2023, November 10 2023, February 15 2024, March 29, 2024. The 
intervening gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

 
The details of the Audit Committee meetings attended by its members during FY 2023-24 are 
given below: 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director  Category / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of Meetings 
held during the FY 

2023-24 

Percentage 
of 

attendance 
Held Attended 

1. Mr. Satya Narain 
Mittal 

Chairman, Non-
Executive Independent 
Director 

5 5 100.00 

2. Mr. Jaimish 
Govindbhai Patel 

Member, Non-
Executive Independent 
Director 

5 5 100.00 

3. Mr. Shankerlal 
Bansilal Shah 

Member, Executive  
Director 

5 5 100.00 

 
The Chief Financial Officer was invited to attend the audit committee meetings. The Company 
Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary of the Committee. The Board of Directors has 
taken note of and accepted the observations and recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee. 

 
2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Act. 
 
During the year under review, one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
were held i.e. on November 10, 2023. 
 
The details of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings attended by its members 
during FY 2023-24 are given below: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director  Category / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of Meetings 
held during the FY 

2023-24 

Percentage 
of 

attendance 
Held Attended 

1. Mr. Satya Narain Chairman, Non- 1 1 100.00 



Mittal Executive Independent 
Director 

2. Mr. Jaimish 
Govindbhai Patel 

Member, Non-
Executive Independent 
Director 

1 1 100.00 

3. Mrs. Ayushi Yash 
Shah 

Member, Non-
Executive Director 

1 1 100.00 

 
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary of the Committee. 

 
3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
The Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act. 
 
During the year under review, one meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was 
held i.e. on November 10, 2023. 
 
The details of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings attended by its members 
during FY 2023-24 are given below: 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director  Category / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of Meetings 
held during the FY 

2023-24 

Percentage 
of 

attendance 
Held Attended 

1. Mr. Satya Narain 
Mittal 

Chairman, Non-
Executive Independent 
Director 

1 1 100.00 

2. Mr. Jaimish 
Govindbhai Patel 

Member, Non-
Executive Independent 
Director 

1 1 100.00 

3. Mr. Shankerlal 
Bansilal Shah 

Member, Non-
Executive Independent 
Director 

1 1 100.00 

 
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary of the Committee. 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not received any investor complaints from its 
shareholders.  

 
CORPORATE GOVERANCE 

 
In line with Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulations, the provisions of Corporate Governance shall 
not apply in respect of the following class of the Companies: 

 
a. Listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 10 Crore and Net worth not 

exceeding Rs. 25 Crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year; 
 

b. Listed entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange. 
 

Since, our Company falls in the ambit of aforesaid exemption (b); hence compliance with the 
provisions of Corporate Governance shall not apply to the Company and it does not form the part of 
the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24. 



 
POSTAL BALLOT 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, there are no special resolution was required to be put 
through postal ballot. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE-5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014 

 
Disclosure required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule-5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 have been annexed as Annexure-B. No employee of 
the Company was in receipt of the remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under Rule 5 (2) and 
(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, hence, 
not applicable to the Company. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  

 
In compliance with Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act, Annual Return is uploaded on Company’s 
website and can be accessed at www.bahetiindustries.com.  

 
AUDITORS: 
 
• STATUTORY AUDITOR 

 
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, as amended, M/s. Jeevan 
Jagetiya & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 121335W), were appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of your Company for a term of five years beginning from the conclusion of 
Annual General Meeting held in year 2023 till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting held in 
year 2028 (AGM).  
 
The Board has taken note and M/s. Jeevan Jagetiya & Co., Chartered Accountants, have 
confirmed their eligibility under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 
thereunder as Statutory Auditors of the company. As required under Listing Regulations, the 
Auditors have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the peer review Board of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the auditors 
in their report on the financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024. The notes on the Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any comments or explanations. 
 

• SECRETARIAL AUDITOR  
 

Pursuant to requirement of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has 
appointed M/s Parth P Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP: 18640), to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit and to provide Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of the 
company for the financial year 2023-24. Secretarial Audit Report is given by M/s Parth P Shah & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries and is attached herewith as Annexure-D. 

 
The observations referred to in the Secretarial Audit Report are self-explanatory and do not call 
for any comments or explanations. 

http://www.mahickra.com/


 
• INTERNAL AUDITOR 

 
M/s. Wadhawan Pandya & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 129455W), Ahmedabad are 
Internal Auditors of the Company. Internal Auditors are appointed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company on a yearly basis, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. The 
Internal Auditors report their findings on the internal audit of the Company, to the Audit 
Committee on a periodic basis. The scope of internal audit is approved by the Audit Committee.  

 
DISCLOSURE, AS TO WHETHER MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 
 
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
(including any statutory modifications and re-enactments thereof) the cost audit records maintained by 
the company in respect of its manufactured by the Company is required to be audited. 

 
As per the requirement of Section 148(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have, based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, appointed M/s. Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountant, Ahmedabad (Firm 
Registration No. 102409) to audit the cost accounts of the company for the financial year 2023-24. As 
required under the Act, necessary resolution seeking members’ ratification for the remuneration 
payable to Anuj Aggarwal & Co., is forming part of the notice convening Annual General Meeting of 
the company for the financial year 2023-24. 

 
The Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24 will be submitted to the Central Government in 
the prescribed format.  
 
REPORTING OF FRAUD 

 
In pursuance to the provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors had not reported 
any incident of frauds (other than those which are reportable to the Central Government) to the Board 
of Directors of the Company during the financial year under review.  
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS & THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has an adequate system of the internal controls to ensure that all its assets are protected 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and further that those transactions are authorised, 
promptly recorded and reported correctly. The Company has implemented an effective framework for 
Internal Financial Controls in terms of the provisions stipulated under the explanation to Section 
134(5)(e) of the Act for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has an effective Internal Financial 
Controls which is commensurate with the size and scale of the business operations of the Company for 
the Financial Year under review. Adequate internal financial controls with respect to financial 
statements are in place. The Company has documented policies and guidelines for this purpose. Its 
Internal Control System has been designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable 
for preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining accountability of assets.  
 
The internal audit and the management review supplement the process implementation of effective 
internal control. The Audit Committee of the Board deals with accounting matters, financial reporting 
and internal controls and regularly interacts with the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and 
Management in dealing with matters within its terms of reference. No reportable material weakness in 
the design or implementation was observed during the financial year under review. 



 
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 
During the year under review, the company has complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standards 
issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India to the extent applicable.  
 
DEPOSITS 

 
During the year under review, The Company has not accepted any deposit any deposit from the public 
/ members pursuant to Section 73 and Section 76 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and hence as on March 31, 2024, there are no 
deposits outstanding, except as required statutorily and which have been unclaimed at the end of the 
year under review 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length 
basis and were in the ordinary course of business and were placed before the Audit Committee and 
also before the Board for their review and approval. The related party transactions entered into by the 
Company with the related parties during the financial year under review, are disclosed in Form AOC-2 
annexed as Annexure-C as per Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.  
 
In line with the provisions of the Act the Company has formulated a Related Party Transactions Policy 
for determining materiality of Related Party Transactions and also the manner for dealing with Related 
Party Transactions. The Related Party Transactions Policy is uploaded on the Company’s website. The 
Company has maintained a register under Section 189 of the Act and particulars of Related Party 
Transactions are entered in the Register, whenever applicable. Further, Related Party disclosures in 
compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards have been given in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. The Related Party Transaction policy is placed on the Company’s website i.e. 
www.bahetiindustries.com  
 
None of the Independent Directors have any pecuniary relationship with your Company. 
 
DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH 
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
There was no application made and proceeding initiated / pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational Creditors against your Company during 
the year under review. As on the date of this report, there is no application or proceeding pending 
against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 
DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE 
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 
REASONS THEREOF 

 
It is not applicable to the Company during the year under review. 

http://www.mahickra.com/


 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY 

 
There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements 
relate and the date of signing of this report. 

 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, 
COURTS AND TRIBUNALS 

 
During the year under review, there are no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators/courts or tribunals that could impact the going concern status and operations of the 
Company in future. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (‘CSR’) 

 
The provisions of the Corporate Social Responsibility as contained under section 135 of the Act are 
applicable on the Company.  

The CSR policy is available on the website of your Company. The Annual Report on CSR activities is 
annexed as Annexure E and forms part of this report. The Company has spent more than 2% of the 
average net profits of your Company, during the three years immediately preceding financial year. 

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF 
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy was developed by the Board of Directors of your Company 
in order to ensure compliance with Section 178 of the Act, as well as any other applicable laws. The 
Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters as provided in 
Section 178(3) of the Act is available on the website of the Company at and has been displayed on 
website www.bahetiindustries.com. 
 
The policy lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management of the Company. The Policy broadly lays down the guiding principles, 
philosophy and the basis for payment of remuneration to Executive and Non-executive Directors (by 
way of sitting fees and commission), Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The policy 
also provides the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of 
Director and criteria for appointment and removal of Directors Key Managerial Personnel / Senior 
Management and performance evaluation which are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors.  

 
ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS 
COMMITTEES AND OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations the Board has carried out an annual 
evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the Directors individually as well as the 
evaluation of the working of its committees’.  
 
In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, 
performance of the Board as a whole, performance of the Committee(s) of the Board and performance 
of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of other directors. 

http://www.mahickra.com/


 
LISTING FEES 
 
The Company’s equity shares are listed under the SME Segment of the National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (“NSE”) popularly known as NSE EMERGE Platform since December 08, 2022. The 
Company confirms that it has paid the annual listing fees for the Financial Year 2024-25 to the NSE. 

 
PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING 
 
In terms of the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI PIT Regulations”), the Company has adopted the 
revised “Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders” (“the Code”). The 
Code is applicable to promoters, all directors, designated persons and connected persons and their 
immediate relatives, who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information 
relating to the Company. The Company has also formulated a ‘Code of Practices and Procedures for 
Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)’ in compliance with the PIT 
Regulations.  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The process of identifying, evaluating, and prioritizing risks is known as risk management. This is 
preceded by coherent initiatives aimed at minimizing, oversee, and ameliorate (or control) the 
probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize opportunities for achievement. The 
Company has established a thorough risk assessment and minimization process, which is periodically 
reviewed by the Board. These processes are examined to make sure executive management effectively 
manages risk using a strictly delineated framework. The company has identified the major risks, and 
processes and measures for mitigating those risks have been developed in areas like business, project 
execution, events, financial, human, environmental, and statutory compliance. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 
The Company has in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the workplace in line with 
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. All the employees of the Company are covered under the said policy. Internal 
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 
There were no complaints pending for the Redressal at the beginning of the year and no complaints 
received during the financial year. 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 
In compliance with Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, your 
company has implemented a whistleblower policy and created the necessary vigil mechanism for 
directors and employees to enable the reporting of sincere concerns about improper or unethical 
behavior without fear of vengeance. 
 
Your company's vigil mechanism offers sufficient protections against victimization of directors and 
employees who use it, as well as, in exceptional circumstances, direct access to the chairman of the 
audit committee. Access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee has never been denied to anyone. 
The aforementioned policy can be found on your company's website at www.bahetiindustries.com.  
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION 

 
Your Company's Health and Safety Policy commits to comply with applicable legal and other 
requirements connected with occupational Health, Safety and Environment matters and provide a 
healthy and safe work environment to all employees of the Company. 

 
WEBSITE 

 
In compliance with Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations, your company maintains a fully functional 
website with the domain name www.bahetiindustries.com. The website serves as a comprehensive 
source of basic information about our company. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, is attached as Annexure – A to this Report. 

 
GREEN INITIATIVES 

 
The Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report 2023–24 are being sent only electronically to Members 
whose email addresses are registered with the company or depositories in accordance with Regulation 
36 of the Listing Regulations. Members may take note that the Notice and Annual Report for 2023–
2024 will also be accessible at the website of the Company i.e. www.bahetiindustries.com. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
The annual report including those which relate to the directors’ report, management discussion and 
analysis report may contain certain statements on the Company’s intent expectations or forecasts that 
appear to be forward-looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations while 
actual outcomes may differ materially from what is expressed herein. 
 
APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
The Directors thank the Company's employees, customers, vendors, investors and business partners for 
their continuous support. The Directors also thank the Government of India, Governments of various 
states in India, Governments of various countries and concerned Government departments and 
agencies for their co-operation. The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every 
member of the Baheti family. 
   
   
 For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
Sd/ 

Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 03006486 

 
Sd/ 

Yash Shankerbhai Shah 
Joint Managing Director 

DIN: 09527701 
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Annexure-A to this Directors’ Report 
 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 
(Information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
PARTICULARS REMARKS 
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  
 > the steps taken or impact on conservation 

of energy; 
Your Company is taking due care when using 
electricity in the office and its units.  

 > the steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy; 

Your Company usually takes care for optimum 
utilization of energy. No capital investment on 

 > the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipments; 

energy conservation equipment made during the 
financial year. 

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  
 > the efforts made towards technology 

absorption; 
The products of your company are developed 
using internal know-how; no outside technology 
is used for operational tasks. As a result, 
technological immersion is not necessary. This 
strategy ensures that all products are developed in 
accordance with our specific standards and gives 
your company total control over the production 
process. By continuously innovating and 
adapting to shifting customer demands, your 
Company can maintain a competitive edge in the 
market by relying on internal know-how. 

 > the benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution; 

 > in case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year)- 

  (a) the details of technology imported; 
  (b) the year of import; 
  (c) whether the technology been fully 

absorbed; 
  (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorption has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof; Not applicable 
since 5 years period is over 

 > the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development 

Your Company has not incurred any expenditure 
on Research and Development for the Financial 
year 2023-24 

(c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 > The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of 

actual inflows during the year and the 
Foreign Exchange outgo during the year 
in terms of actual outflows 

Foreign Exchange Earnings (Rs. In Lakhs):  
 
For FY 2023-24: 324.80 
For FY 2022-23: 641.10  
 
Foreign Exchange Outgo (Rs. In Lakhs):  
 
For FY 2023-24: 26,498.75 
For FY 2022-23: 24,653.42 

 
 
 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
Sd/ 

Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 03006486 

 
Sd/ 

Yash Shankerbhai Shah 
Joint Managing Director 

DIN: 09527701 
 

 



Annexure-B to this Directors’ Report 
 

Statement of Particulars as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
1. The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel to the median 

remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024: 

Sr. 
No. 

Director/KMP Designation Remuneration 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 
 

Ratio to median 
remuneration of 
employees 

1.  Mr. Shankerlal 
Bansilal Shah 

Chairman & 
Whole-time 
Director 

36.00 9.84:1.00 

2.  Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah 

Managing Director 24.00 6.56:1.00 

3.  Mr. Yash 
Shankerbhai Shah 

Joint Managing 
Director 

24.00 6.56:1.00 

4.  Mr. Manojkumar 
Jagdishchandra Shah 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

14.95 3.28:1.00 

5.  Mrs. Mansi Harsh 
Darji(*) 

Company Secretary 1.80 0.37:1.00 

*The Board of Directors has appointed Mrs. Mansi Harsh Darji as a Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 
Company w.e.f. June 01, 2022 

 
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year ended March 
31, 2024: 

Sr. No. Director/KMP Designation Ratio to median remuneration 
of employees 

1.  Mr. Shankerlal Bansilal 
Shah 

Chairman & Whole-
time Director 

0.00% 

2.  Mr. Balkishan 
Shankerlal Shah 

Managing Director 0.00% 

3.  Mr. Yash Shankerbhai 
Shah 

Joint Managing 
Director 

0.00% 

4.  Mr. Manojkumar 
Jagdishchandra Shah 

Chief Financial Officer 14.12% 

5.  Mrs. Mansi Harsh 
Darji(*) 

Company Secretary 31.39% 

*The Board of Directors has appointed Mrs. Mansi Harsh Darji as a Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 
Company w.e.f. June 01, 2022 

 
The other directors are Non-Executive Directors and they are not receiving remuneration and 
sitting fees during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 



 
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024: 14.60% 
 

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: There are 237 permanent 
employees on the rolls of the Company. 

 
5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration; 

 
The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in financial year 
2023-2024 was 4.85% percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was 
15.76%. Annual increment in the salary is based on the different grades, industry pattern, 
qualification, expertise and experience of individual employee. As such the annual increment in 
remuneration is as per the terms of appointment and is in conformity with the remuneration 
policy of the Company. 
 

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 
 
The remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
Sd/ 

Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 03006486 

 
Sd/ 

Yash Shankerbhai Shah 
Joint Managing Director 

DIN: 09527701 



Annexure - C to this Directors’ Report 
 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: 

 
All contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in Sub-
Section (1) of Section 188 of the Act are at arm’s length basis. 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
 
All the transactions were entered by the Company in ordinary course of business and were in 
arm's length basis: 
 

Name of the 
Related Party 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of 
Contract/Agree

ment/ 
Transactions 

Salient 
terms & 
Conditio
ns if any, 

Date of 
Approval by 
the board, if 

any 

Amount 
paid as 

advances 
if any 

Amount of 
Transaction 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
 
 
 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
Sd/ 

Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 03006486 

 
Sd/ 

Yash Shankerbhai Shah 
Joint Managing Director 

DIN: 09527701 
 



Annexure - D to this Directors’ Report 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members, 
BAHETI RECYCLING INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN:- L37100GJ1994PLC024001 
A/2/3 L R Appartment, Opp: Police Commissioner Office Shahibaug,  
Ahmedabad- 380004, Gujarat, India 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Baheti Recycling Industries Limited (hereinafter called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 

Based on my verification of the records of Baheti Recycling Industries Limited,  books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the 
information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the company has proper Board-processes and compliances mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and record maintained by 
Baheti Recycling Industries Limited for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to 
the provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;  
 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act,1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under 
 

(iii)The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings: (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW) 

 
(v)The following Regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992(‘SEBI Act’) :- 
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeover) Regulations, 2011;  

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulation, 2015;  

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  

d. Securities And Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR 
UNDER REVIEW) 



e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2021; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR 
UNDER REVIEW) 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client. 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW) 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW) 

 
(vi) As stated in the Annexure – A – all the laws, rules, regulations are applicable specifically 

to the company. 
(vii) No other major corporate events occurred during the year and various 

compliances made by the Company with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, and Listing 
Regulations etc.  

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and applicable 
w.e.f July 01, 2015 or any amendment, substation, if any, are adopted by the Company and are 
complied with.  

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and the provisions of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
I further report that 
 
The board of directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, 
non-executives’ directors, independent directors and woman director. There are no changes in the 
composition of the board of directors that took place during the period under review.  
 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or with consent of directors at a shorter notice, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision is carried 
through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 
 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 

I further report that during the audit period, the company has not incurred any specific event / action 
that can have a bearing on the company’s compliance responsibilities in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guideline, standards, etc.  Referred to above. 

 
Date: 31st August, 2024              FOR PARTH P SHAH & ASSOCIATES,                                                                                           
Place: Ahmedabad                                                       PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES 
                                                                                        
                                                                    Sd/- 

Parth P Shah 
(Proprietor) 
FCS: 11871, COP: 18640 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 1949/2022 
UDIN: F011871F001091103 



 
“ANNEXURE-A” 
 

Securities Laws 
 

1. All Price Sensitive Information were informed to the stock exchanges from time to time 
2. All investors’ complaint directly received by the RTA & Company is recorded on the same 

date of receipts and all are resolved within reasonable time. 
 
Labour Laws 
 

1. All the premises and establishments have been registered with the appropriate authorities. 
2. The Company has not employed any child labour/ Bonded labour in any of its establishments. 
3. Provisions with relate to compliances of PF/ESI/Gratuity Act are applicable to Company and 

Complied with.  
 
Environmental Laws 
 
As the company is engaged in the manufacturing activities, the environmental laws as are applicable 
to it and it has properly complied with such provisions to the extent applicable. 

 
Taxation Laws 
 
The company follows all the provisions of the taxation and Income Tax Act, 1961 and filing the 
returns at proper time with Income tax department and all other necessary departments. 
 

                FOR PARTH P SHAH & ASSOCIATES,                                                                                              
                                                                                       PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES 
                                                 
                                                                                                 
                                                                                       Sd/  

Parth P Shah 
(Proprietor) 
FCS: 11871, COP: 18640 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 1949/2022 
UDIN: F011871F001091103 

 
Place: Ahmedabad  
Date: 31st August, 2024



 
 “ANNEXURE-B” 

 
To 
The Members, 
BAHETI RECYCLING INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN:- L37100GJ1994PLC024001 
A/2/3 L R Appartment, Opp: Police Commissioner Office Shahibaug,  
Ahmedabad- 380004, Gujarat, India 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:  
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company.  
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis.  
 

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  
 

7. We have relied on Management Representation Letter provided by the Company before issuing this 
Report to the Company. 
 

                     FOR PARTH P SHAH & ASSOCIATES,                                                                                              
                                                                                        PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES 
                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                        Sd/ 

Parth P Shah 
(Proprietor) 
FCS: 11871, COP: 18640 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 1949/2022 
UDIN: F011871F001091103 

Place: Ahmedabad  
Date: 31st August, 2024 



Annexure - E to this Directors’ Report 
Annual Report on CSR Activities  

  
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

 
In line with the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with its Rules, Baheti 
Recycling Industries Limited has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy that 
mandates the company to spend at least 2% of the average net profits of the immediately preceding 
three financial years on CSR activities. CSR involves incurring costs that do not provide an 
immediate financial benefit to the company but instead promote positive social and environmental 
change. In line with this mandate, the company's CSR policy is designed with consideration of the 
company's vision, mission, socio-economic environment, and capacities. The policy on CSR can be 
viewed on the company's website www.bahetiindustries.com. 
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 
  

Sl. No. Name of 
Director 

Designation / 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
attended during the 

year 
1. Mr. Satya Narian 

Mittal 
Chairman, (Non-

Executive 
Independent 

Director) 

1 1 

2. Mrs. Ayushi 
Yash Shah 

Member, (Non-
Executive 
Director) 

1 1 

3. Mr. Shankerlal B. 
Shah 

Member, 
(Executive 
Director) 

1 1 

  
3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects 

approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.bahetiindustries.com  
 

4. Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule 
(3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 
applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable for the Financial Year 2023-24 

 
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set 
off for the financial year, if any: 

 
Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial years 
(in Rs) 

Amount required to be set-off 
for the financial year, if any 

(in Rs) 
Not Applicable 

  
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 391.57 Lakhs 

http://www.bahetiindustries.com/


 
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 7.83 Lakhs 

 
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years: NIL 
 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL 
 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 7.83 Lakhs 
 

8. (a) CSR Amount Spent or Unspent For The Financial Year: 
 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial 
Year. (Rs. In 

Lakhs) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to section 135(5). 
Amount. Date of 

transfer. 
Name of the 

Fund 
Amount. Date of 

transfer. 
15.00 Not Applicable 

  
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 

Applicable 
  

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in schedule 
VII to the 

Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of 
the project. 

Amount 
spent 

for the 
project 
(Rs. In 
Lakhs). 

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of Implementation - 
Through implementing 

agency. 
State District Name. CSR 

registration 
number. 

1. Aid to 
underprivileges 
section of the 

society 
 

Promoting 
education, 
including 
special 

education 
and 

employment 
enhancing 
vocation 

skills 
especially 

among 
children, 
women, 

elderly and 
the 

differently 
abled and 
livelihood 

enhancement 
projects. 

 

No Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 

10.00 No ABMM 
Maheshwari 
Relief 
Foundation 

CSR00001475. 
 
 

2. Welfare of Veterans, 
their widows and 

their wards 
 

No Bhilwara, 
Rajasthan 

5.00 No Shri Krishna 
Das Jajoo 
Smarak Trust 

CSR00008190 

Total 15.00  
  



(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 15.00 Lakhs 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 
 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (Rs. In Lakhs) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 

per section 135(5) 
7.83 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 15.00 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 7.17 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any 

7.17 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

7.17 

  
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

 Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year. 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
under section 

135 (6) (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 

in 
succeeding 
financial 
years. (in 

Rs.) 

Name of 
the 

Fund 

Amount 
(in Rs). 

Date of 
transfer. 

Not Applicable 
  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 
preceding financial year(s): 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. No. Project 
ID. 

Name 
of the 

Project. 

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Amount 
spent on 

the 
project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 

Rs). 

Cumulative 
amount 

spent at the 
end of 

reporting 
Financial 
Year. (in 

Rs.) 

Status of 
the project 

- 
Completed 
/Ongoing. 

Not Applicable 
  
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable 
       

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).: NIL 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.: NIL 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital 

asset is registered, their address etc.: NIL 
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 

location of the capital asset).: NIL 
    
 



 
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 

profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 
 
 
 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Baheti Recycling Industries Limited 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
Sd/- 

 Balkishan Shankerlal Shah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 03006486 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Narian Mittal 
Chairman of CSR Committee 

DIN: 09533705 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
-\__

To.
The Members of BAHETI RECYCLING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Baheti Metal and Ferro Alloys Ltd')
Ahmedabad

Report on the Audit of the standalone Financial statelhents

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of BAHETI

RECYCLING INDSUTRIES LIMITED (Cttl: L37100GJ1994PLC024001) ("the Companv")

which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2024, the statement of Profit and

Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended and notes to the standalone

financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatorY information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information

required by:he Companies Act, 2013 ("the:Act") in the manner so required and give a

true and fair view in conformity with the actbunting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the Codrpany aJat 31" March,2024, and its profit and its

cash flows for the year ended on that date'

Basis for OPinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Stahdards on Auditing (SAs) specified

under section 143(10) of the CoFpanies Act,2013. Our responsibilities under those

Standards are. further de-scribed iri.;he 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Standalone the Financial Statements'l section of our report. we are independent of the

.Company in accordance with the'Cote of Ethics'issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to

our ,audit of .the Fihancial Statements under the provisiorts of the Companies
. a.i,zoli ""a the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and code of Ethics' we

believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our oPinion

Key Audit Matters \

Key audit matters are those mattels that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the Finapcial Statements of the current period' These

-"tt"., were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereo r, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these mattels. We have determined the matter describ6 below to be key audit

matter to be communicated below'

C 210, Shilp-ll, Above HDFC Bank, Nr. Sales India, Income Tax, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad

@ 079 - 27s41850,4030 1178 @ ca.jjandco@gmait.com



We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance to these procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of the material misstatement of
the Financial Statements.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to'address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our
audit

A. Revenue Recognition

l.The Company's revenue is principally
derived from sale of aluminum products
viz. Cubes and Alloy Ingots. Revenue from
sale of goods is .recognized when control
of the products being sold is transferred
to the customer and when there are no
other unfulfilled obligations.

2.Revenue is the consideration received or
receivable after deduction of any
trade/volume discounts and taxes or
duties colletted. Hence, we identified
revenue recognition as a key audit ma\tter
since revenue is significant to ithe
financial statements and is required to be

recognized as per the requirements of the
applicable accounting framework

Our audit procedure:

1. We assessed the appropriateness of the
revenue recognition accounting policies by
comparing them with applicable Accounting
Standards (AS).

2. Evaluated the process followed by the
management for revenue recognition
including understanding and testing of key
controls related to recognition of revenue in
current period.

3.?erformed substantive testing on samples
selected using statistical sampling of
ievenue transactions, recorded during the
year by testing the documents to determine
whether revenue has been recognized
comectly.

4.Performed other substantive procedures
obtaining Debtor Confirmations on sample
basis and reconciling same with revenue
recorded during the year, also reconciling
revenuer recorded w]ih statutory filing.

B. Inventory Existence and Valuation

l. There are complexities and manual
process involved in determining inventory
quantities on hand and valuation of the
same due to the company's diverse and

Our audit procedure:

1.We have attended inventory counts, which
we selected based on financial significance
and risk, observed management's inventory
count procedures to assess the



numerous
progress
processes
Therefore,
valuation
matter.

inventory products and work in
at different stages of the

at manufacturing unit.
inventory quantities and

is identified as a key audit

effectiveness, selected a sample of inventory
products and compared the quantities
counted to the quantities recorded and
ensured inventory adjustments, if any, are

recorded in books of accounts.

2.Assessed whEther the management's
internal controls relating to ihventory's
valuation are appropriately designed and
implemented.

3.Discussed with the management on the
management's process of identifying the
stages of completion and valuing work in
progress stock at the time of book closure

.proceeds.

4.Verified the correctness of valuation made

by the management on a sample basis, with
regard to the cost and let realizable value of
inventory.

(
(

{

Information Other than the Financial Statedrents and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is iesponsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information colnprises -the information included in the Board
Report including Annexure to Board's Riport,-Management Report but does not include
the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Finane ial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility
is to read the -other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repor-t that fact. We have
nothing to report in this legard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to preparation and
presentation of these standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the act.



This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgment and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records, relevant to preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 'material

misstatement,"whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and usi4g the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Director either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financ'ial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not/a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will alwayb detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or eiror and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reas$nably b-e expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of thesg Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with -SA's, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout thqaudit. We also: -

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis fer our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errorias fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, .intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act,20l3, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estinrates and related disclosures made by management.



Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date,'of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Companyito cease

to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events irl a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also
provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to comnunicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters cotnmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Financial
Statements of the current period qnd are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these mattels in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be comrn\unicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would redsonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by
the Central Government of India in tErms of sub-section (11) of section I43 of the
Co.mpanies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessdry for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required'by law haYe been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of books except for the matters
stated for reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 with respect to maintenance of Audit Trail.

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash FIow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account of the company;

2.

a)

b)



d)

e)

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

On the basis of written representations received from directors as on 31" March,2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on
March 31,2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
"Annexure B". -..'r

With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in accordance

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Companies Act,20l3, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and explanation given to us, the
remuneration paid by company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
provisions of section 197 of the act.

The modification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
there with are as stated in paragraph above on reporting under Section 143(3Xb) of the
Act and reporting uhder RuIe 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit dnd Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

i) The Company has disclosed thd impact of pending litigations on its financial
positions in its financial statements- Refer Note 29.2 to the financial
statements;

ii) The Company did not have any lonlterm contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were'any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor

. Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Managernerit has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources pr kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including fqreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing of otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity
(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,

c)

h)
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whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

=i
(c) Based on the audit procedures adopted that'have been considered rq,Asonable

and appfopriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has

caused us to believe that the representatiop made by the management under sub

clause (a) & (b) above, contain any materiallmisstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid anjrdr'vidgnd during the year. Therefore,
compliance of the provisions of section l2$ of the Act is not applicable.

3. The company has used an accountiq! software for maintaining its books of
account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility but the

same is not enabled by the Company for whole of the year. Hence the company
has not complied with Proviso to Rule 3(f ) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 for maintaining books of accbunt using accounting sOftware which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility as applicable to the Company
with effect from April I,2023.

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: - 121335W ll

CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)
M. No. 046553

UDIN: 240465 5 3B.KEXRD7089

oaie: gotl u ay, 2024
PIace:Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Requirements" Section of Our Report of Even Date.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

i. In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a)
A. The corirpany has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records- showing full particulars of intangible
assets during the year under audit.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the
management in the phase manner over the period of three years which is in our opinion,
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this programme, major portion of Property, Plant and Equipment have
been physically verified by the management during the year and no serious discrepancies
have been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds cjf all immovable properties disclosed in financial statements of the
company are held in the name of company except following,

Description of
Property

Gross
Carrying
Value

Held ' in
Name of-

\

Whether
Promoter,
Director,
Relative or
emplovee

Period Held Reason for
not being
held in the
name of
Comoanv

Survey No 251 Old
Survey No I74
Paiki I, Old
Survey No 175,
Old Survey No 175
Paiki 3. at Sampa,
Ta:Dehgam,
Dist:Gandhinagar

30,30,780 Yash
Metal
Private
Limited

Erst while
Merged
Company

Since
Merger

The
procedure
for change
of name is
Under
Process
along with
Land
Revenue
Authorities.

(d) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has not revdlued its property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets during the year.

(e) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any Benami property under prohibitlon of Benami Transactions Act,I98B (as amended in
2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of i988)) and rules
made thereunder during the year.

(c)
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II In respect of Inventories:

According to the information and explanations'given to uS, the management h1t
conducte-cl physical verification of inventori:s at reasonable intervals during the year' In

our opiniott, ttt. coverage and p erification by the management -is
appropriate having ,.guri to thi and nature of its operations' T!"
discrepancies notiied 

"on physical ories as compared to book records

did nol exceed 10% or more in aggregate of e f inventory.

Acc us' the CorqPanY has been

san in aggregate' from banks on

the ompany h^a's filed original as

wel ch originai as well as revised

statements filed with banks are in agreement with books of'account of the Company other

than those as set out below:

Axis Bank Cash Credit Facility amounting to Rs.4O00 Lacs

Remarks on Quarter 1. \ _

Difference in stock is minor and same is on account of valuation. Difference in Debtors is

on account of TDS entry done after submission of stock statement and some parties not
given in stock statement. Difference in advance to supplier- on account of Grouping
;ii;;;.--"i t;;; accounts and bank redonciliation done after submission of stock

st"t"irent. Difference in channel,finance is on account of mistake in booking interest:

Remarks on Quarter 2 \

Difference in stock is minor and sanr.e is on account of valuation. Difference in Debtors is

;; ";."""r bank reconciliation done after submflssion of-stock statement and change in
TDS entry done.after submission of stoCk statenlent. Difference in channel finance is on

account of mistake inbook'ing interest.i

Remarks on Quarter 3 ',

Difference in stock is minor and same is on account of valuation' Difference in Debtors is

on account of TDS entry done after submission of stock s\atement and bill discounting
."t.V a"". "ft". trrU-iision of stock statement and due to change in grouping of some

accounts. Difference in sundry creditors is on account of change in grouping of eertain
parties and also some parties not'given in stock statement. Difference in advance to

iupplier on account of irouping change of some accounts and some advance not given in
stock statement. Difference in'channel finance is on atcount of mistake in booking

interest.

Remarks on Quarter 4 I
Difference in stock is minor'and same is on account of valuatibn.

(a)

(b)

t
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Federal bank Cash Credit Facility amounting to Rs.2000 Lacs

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Remarks on Quarter 1.

Difference in stock is minor and same'is on account of valuation. Difference in Debtors is
on account of TDS entry done after submission of stock statement and some parties not
given in stock statement. Difference in creditors is on account of certain parties not given
in stock statement and due to grouping change after submission of stock statement.
Difference in advance to supplier on account of Grouping change of some accounts and
bank reconciliation done after submission of stock statement. Difference in channel
finance is on account of mistake in booking interest.

Remarks on Quartbr 2

Difference in stock is minor and same ls on account of valuation. Difference in Debtors\is
on account bank reconciliatioh done after submission of stock statement and change in
TDS entry-done after submission of stock-statement. Difference in channel finance is on
account of mistake in booking intefest. 

.

Remarks on Quarter 3 '

Difference in stock is minor and sam-e is on acco.unt of valuation. Difference in Debtors is
on account of TDS entry done .aftei subrriiFsion of stock statement and bill discounting
entry done after submission of 'stock statement and due to change in grouping of some
accounts. Difference in- sundry creditors is on account of change in grouping of certain
parties and also some parties not given in stock statement. Difference in advance to
supplier on account of Grguping change of some accounts and some advance not given in
stock statement. Difference in channel finance is on account of mistake in booking
interest.

Remarks on Quarier 4

Difference in stock is minor and same is on account of vEluation.

iii. In respect of Loans/Guarantees/Security/Investryrent given/made by the company:-

(a) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secur€d or
unsecured to Companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during
the year. The company has not made investment or securities to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

A. The aggregate amount during the year and balance outstanding at the balance
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iir-G_Ei

: -1,1 f RN tZtf f Sv,t \9 il
:ril o,it
\,'i'?

a
U
A
R
T
E
R STOCK DEBTORS CREDITORS

ADVANCE TO
SUPPLIER

CHANNEL
FINANCE

BOO
KS ss

DI
FF

BOO
KS SS DIFF

BOO
KS ss

DIF
F

BO
OK
s SS

DIF
Fr

'BOO
KS SS

DIF
F

I
6191
26

6r89.
6n

l.
66

6093
5l

6099.
74

-6.
23

r 009.
t7

756.
88

252
29

377.
67

267
51

I10,,
l6

2882
o9

2882
nq

0.
oo

z
7405.
32

7404.
95

0.
37

6217.
93

btl5.
s3

r02
40

r559.
26

r559.
26

n

00
6Q7.
08

607
08

0.
00

27L9
7q

27 18.
qo

1.
29

3
7382.
11

7379.
42

2.
69

535 I
52

5690
29

-338.
77

195V.
77

7877.
LR,

80
2q

266. zb)
32

0.
84

2273.
08

2268.
44 64

4
8867.
?R

8866.
7n

0.
6R

4838
64

4838. 0.
oo

r624
08

t624.
0a.-

0.
00

4dv
08

z+dy

08
0.
00

24r2.
24

2412.
24

0.
00

parties other than subsidi-dfies, joint ventures and associates



(

(

(b) The Loan granted by the company are
company. This loan granted by the
company to the extent of not charging

in the nature of staff loan to the employee
company are prejudicial to the interest

of any interest by the company.

of the
of the

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principle is
regular however there is no interest charged on the loan so there is no payment for the
interest received.

There is no-stipulated repayment however verification of same shows that repayment of
loan is regular.

There is no any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during
the year, has been renewed or extended or +fresh-loans granted to settle the Overdue of
existing loans given to the same parties. Thbrefore, no further information is required to
be furnished under this clause

The company has not granted loans or-"d,n"n..s in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to promoters, rglated
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of Loans/Investments/Guarantees/Security by the Company:'

On the basis of dur examination' of the records in respect of loan, the provisions of
section I85 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 have been complied with the company..

v. In respect of Deposits:- I

The Company has not accepted gny public deposits and also no amounts which are' deemed to be deposits and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the companies Act
and the rules framed, there! under are not applicable to the company.

In respect of Cost Records: - ',.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the
iompanies (cost records-and audit) rules,2O14 prescribed by the central government
'und,er section 14S(1) of the Companies act,2013 and are d opinion that prima facie the
presciibed accbunts and cost records have been rhaintained. We have however not made
detailed examinatlon qf the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete. i

vii. In respect of Statutory Dues: - i \

- (a) The company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate autborities undisputed
statutory dues including income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty and other
material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanation
given to us, there were no undisputed amount payable in respect of such due which were
outstanding as at 31" march 2024 for a period more than six months from the date they
became payable.

There are no any disputed dues which have not been deposited of
service tax, custom duty, cess as?t 31" march 2024 and therefore
is required to be furnished under this clause.

(d)

(e)

(f)

lv.

Particulars Aggregate amount loan
sranted durins the vear

Balance outstanding at
3 1st March 2024

Loan Granted 7.78 8.30

(b) income tax, goods and
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ix.

In respect of Unrecorded Income: -

The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
books of account as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income tax
act,196l(43 of 1961). Therefore, no further information is required to be furnished under
this clause.

In respect of repayment of Loans: -

(a) Based on our audit procedures, we are of the opinion the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the pEyment of interest, thereon to any
lender.

(b) Based on oir audit procedures, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) Based on our audit procedures, we report thAt term loans availed by the Company during
the year were applied for the purposejs for wirich t-he loans were obtained.

(d) Based on our audit procedure, funds raised on short-term basis have prima facie not been
utilized for long-term purposes by fhe C.ompany.

(e) Based on our audit procedure, the Company has not taken any funds from any endity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsid.iaries, associates or joint
ventures.

(f) Based on our audit procedure, the Company has not raised l6ans during the year on the
pledge of securitie's held in its subsidiar.ies, joint ventures or associate companies.

x. In respect of Utilisation of IPp and private Placement and Preferential Issues:-

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company did not raise
any money by way of initial pirblic offer or further public offer (including, debt
instruments) during the year. Accofdingly, paragraph 3(xXa) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully., p,artially or optionally convertible) during the year. And
therefore, no.further inf-ormation 'is required to be furnished under this clause.

'xi. In respect of Reporting o,f Fraud: -

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed, we ieport thaino fraud by the Company or
. i any fraud on thb Company has been noticed or reported during year.

-i

(b) Dtrring the year, no report under sub-sdction 12 of secQon 143 of the Act has been filed
by us in Form ADT-4 as prescrib-ed underiRule 13 of e.ompanies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year. 

\

xii. In respect of Nidhi Company:

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per provision of Companies Act,2013. Therefore,
the provision of clause 3(xii)(aXbXc) of the company's (Auditor's report) order,20
applicable.

In respect of Related Party Transaction: -

In our opinion, the all transaction entered by the company with
compliance with section 177 |nd lBB of the Companies Act, 2013

the related pttF
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and the detailS
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have been properly disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. In respect of Internal Audit:-

In our opinion and based on our examination, according to the size and nature of
business, the company has established the internal audit system as per provision of
section 138 of companies Act,2013. Further, we have considered the internal audit report
issued to the company by the internal auditor for the year ended 3l" march,2024.

xv. In respect of Non-Cash Transaction

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or
persons connected with him during the year- Therefore, the provision of clause 3(xv) of
the company's (Auditor's report) order,2020'is not applicable.

XVI.

xvll.

xvlll.

XIX.

In respect of Register under RBI Act,1934: -

The registration under section 45 IA of Reserve Bank of India act,1934 is not required as
the company is not engaged in the business of a non-banking financial institution (as

defined in section 45 I(a) of the Reserve Bank of India act,1934) as its principal business
and hence clause 3(xvi) (a) to (d) of company's (auditor's report) order,2020 is not
applicable.

In respect of Cash Losses:

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year. 

I

In respect of Auditor's Resignatiqn

There has been resignation of the irevious statutory auditors during the year as the main
partner of the previous auditor firm is not keeping good health and is preoccupied due to
Medical Checkup. There has been no,issues, objections or concern raised by the outgoing
auditor.

In respect of. Financial-Position

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 30 to the standalone financial
statements , ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
finaneial liabilities, other information accompanying the sta=ndalone financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company, is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within'a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this. is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reportin! is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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XX. In respect of Corporate Social Responsibility:-
Based upon the audit procedures performed, there
135(5) of the Companies Act,2013 pursuant to any
and 3(xx)(b) of the order are not applicable.

is no unspent amount under section
project. Accordingly, clause 3(xxXa)
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For,Jeevan Jagetiya & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 121335W

M. No. 046553

UDIN: 24O465538KEXRD7089

Date: - 30'h May, 2024

Place: - Ahmedabad
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CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)
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Annexure-B to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in (f) of Paragraph 2 under the heading of "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements" section of our report of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-

section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporti4g of BAHETI

RECYCLING INDUSTRIES LIMITED (Formerly known as Bdheti Metal an{' Ferro Allyos
Limited ) ("the Company") as at 31" March,2024 in conjunction with o,ur audit of the
Financial Stateinents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for q;tablishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential.-components of internal
controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditor's Responsibility /
Our responsibility is to express hn opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our-audit.-We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Interpal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standardb on -Auditing issued by ICAI and deemed to- be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls,-both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute-of Chartered Accountants of India. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
interiial financial controls over finanlial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effeclively in all material respects.

Our audit involve's performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over finarlcial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal finSncial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness -of internal control .based on., the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's inter'nal financial controls system
over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements includes those policies
and procedures that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in..iio.r"Ut. detail, dccurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com0any;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are. recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizatlonl-of management and directors of the

company; and
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispoSition of the company's assets that could have

a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent Iimitations of internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls,,Irloterial misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls. with
reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal..
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because

of changes iri conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. \

I

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our infornration and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects-n adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements..and such internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements were operatingrgffsslively as at March 3I,2024, based on the internal
eontiol with reference to financial statements criterial established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal.Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting-issued by the Institute of

, Chartered Accountants of India.

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: - 121335W

CA Jeevan
(Partner)

etiya

M. No.046553
UDIN: 24O46553BKEXRD7089

Date: 30'h May,2024
Place: Ahmedabad
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l. Corporate Information

Baheti Recycling Industries Limited (Formaly Known as Baheti Metal and Ferro
Allyos Limited) aluminium recycling company, primarily engaged in processing
aluminium based metal scrap to manufacture (l) Aluminium alloys in the form of
ingots and (II) Aluminium de-ox alloys in the form of cubes, ingots, shots and
notch bar. The versatile properties of aluminium and its alloys, results in it being
used in various industries, which include automobiles, construction, electrical
transmission application, food packaging etc. Alurninium alloys ar9' used in
automobile components due to its stiffness, corrosion resistance and excellent
strength to weight ratio. The Aluminium de-ox alloys are used as deoxidizer in
steel manufacturing units.

Baheti Recycling Industries Limited ( was originally incorporated as a public
limited company under the name of "Baheti Metal and Ferro Alloys Limited" on
December 28,L994 under the provisions;of ttre Companies act,1956 with the
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra and Nagar Haveli bearing registration
number as 04-2400l.Subsequently ,the name of our companJi was changed from
"Baheti Metal and Ferro Alloys Limit_ed" to "Baheti Recycling Industries Limited
vide a fresh certificate of incorporaiion dated January 25,2022,issued by the
Registrar of the Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat bearing CIN as
u3 7 r 00GJ 1 994PLC02400 1.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial state'ments

There financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting principles (FAAP) under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis. GA,AP comprises mandatory accounting standards as
prescribed under Section 133 of the.Companies Act,2013("the act") read with
Rule 7.of the Compahies (Accgunt) RUles,2O14, the provisions of the act.

2.2 Use of Estimates' i'

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP
requires judgements, estimates and alsumptions to be made that effect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities
on the date of financial statement and the reported amount of revenues and

, expense's during the reportihg period. Difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognis€d in the period in which the results are
known/materialised.-

ry
The company follows the mercantile system ,of accounting, recognizing
income and expenditure on accrlral basis. The'accounts are prepared on
historical cost basis and as -a going c,oncern basii;... Accounting policies not
referred to specifically otherwise, are consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles. \

Propertv. Plant & Equipment

Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated as per cost model.i.e.at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, costs directly attributable
to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are
ready for use, as intended brz the managementr:&stcomprises the purchase

2.3

2.4

{r ;:Riii
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2.5

2.6

price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. Input tax credit of GST, grants on capital goods are
accounted for by reducing the cost of capital goods.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with them will flow to the company and the cost of expenditure can be
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when they are incurr€d.-

When gssets are disposed or retired, their cost is removed from the financial
statements. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized'in statement of profit and loss for the
relevant financial year.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price including any cost directly
attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, tangible and intangible assets
has been provided under straight line inethod over the.useful life of assets
estimated by.the management which is in line with the terms prescribed in
schedule II to the Companies act,2013. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold
during the period is proportionately charged. Depreciation method, useful life
and residual value are reviewed periodically.

Revenue Recosnition \ -

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will floW to the,company and the revenue can be reliable measured.

Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognized when the signiTicant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have been passed to the buyer. Sales are disclosed net of GST,
trade discounts and returns hs applicable.

Income from services

Revenue from s'ervices is recognized when services have been rendered and
there should be no uncertainty regarding consideration and its ultimate
collection.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the rate.applicable.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised on receipt basis.

{

(



2.7 Inventories

Raw materials including store item and packing material have been valued at
cost. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Cost of finished goods and semi-finished goods includes all cost of purchase,
conversion cost and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. The net realizable value is estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less. the estimated costs of
completion and estimated cost necessary to make the finished goods/product
ready for sale.

2.8 Investment

2.9

Investment which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more
than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are
classified as current investments. AII other investments are classified as non-
current investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost
comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such
as brokerage, fees and duties.

Retirement benefits and other emplovee benefits

All Short-term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during
the accounting period based on services rendered by employees. The
company's contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of
profit and loss on accrual basis. fhe company's obligation is limited to the
amount to be contributed by it. The liability in respect of gratuity is
recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.lO Borrowing cost 
\

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such
assets till such time the asset is ready_for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for
intended use. Costs incurred in raising funds are amortized equally over the
period for which the funds, are acquired. All other borrowing costs are
charged to profit and loss account.

2.ll Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

2.12 Taxation

The accounting treatment for the income tax in respect of the company's
income is based on the accounting standard on "accounting for taxes on
Income" (AS-22). The provision made for income tax in accounts comprises
both, the current tax and deferred tax. Provision for current tax is made on the
assessable income as per Income tax rate is applicable to the relevant
assessment year after considering various deductions available under income
tax ac t, 196 t .

@--
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Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences, being the differences
between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Such

deferred tax is quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enactid as on the balance sheet date. The carrying amount of
deferred tax asset/liability is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
consequential adjustments are carried out.

2.13 Provisions. Continsent liabilities and Contineent assets

A providion is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the company has a
present legal obligaiion that is reasonably estimable and it is probable that an-outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation'
Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the likely future outflow of
economic benefits required to set{le the obligation at the reporting date'

Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure is made as contingent
Iiability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is also made when there is a

possibie obligation or a present obligation that may but probably will not
iequire an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a

present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made'

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

However, Contingent assets are assessed regularly and when it becomes
reasonably certain that inflow of pconomic benefit will arise then same is
recognised in books of accounts.

2.14

Events that occur between balance sheet date and date on which these are

approved, might suggest the requirement for and adjustment(s) to the assets
ana the liabilities 

-is at balance sheet date or might need disclosure'
Adjustments are required to ass-ets and-liabilities for events which occur after
balance sheet date which offer added information substantially affecting the
determination of the amounts which relates to the conditions that existed at
balance sheet date.

2.15 Impairment of Assets

Ah asset is leated as impaired when carrying cost-of assets exceeds its
recoverable value. The recoverable amount is measured as the higher of the

. net selling price and the value in use determined by the present value of
estimated future cash flows. An impairment loss is charged off to profit and
loss account as and when asset is ident[fied for impairment. The impairment
loss recognized in prior accountin if there has been a

change in the estimate 6f recoverab treated as impaired
when carrying cost of assets excee ue' The recoverable
amount is measured as the higher of the net selling price and the value in use

determined by the present value of estimated future cash flow.
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2.LG Foreign Currencv Transactions

a. Initial Recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by
applying the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of transaction.

b. Conversion:

Forqign currency monetary items are reported using the closing'rate.

c. Exchange Difference:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates
different from those at which they aie initially recorded during the year or
reported in previous financial statement are recognized as income or as
expenses at the end of the year by applying closing rate.

2.17 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by
the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and also the weighted average number of shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

The diluted potential eqrrity ,n".i, are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares have been actualllz is_sued at fair value which is the average
market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the $eginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

In case of bonus issue the-weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented should be
adjusted for events, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that

- have changed the numbeY of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

2.18 Government Grants:

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that
the company will comply with the qonditions attached to them and the grants
will be received.

Government grants whose primary conditions'that company should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquired capital assets are presented by deducting
them from carrying value of assets.

Grants related to the revenue are adjusted against expenses to the extent there
is certainty to receive.
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Standalone Balance Sheet

1036.85
3126.34

r049.57
49.5 1

88 5 2.29

402.57

r379.27

429.t?
t47.95

1036.85
2406.26

6001.04

1737.60

2 91.3 5

319.73

il.

I

Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(c) Money received against share warrants

Share application money pending allotment

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-TermBorrowings
(b) Deffered tax liabilities (Net)
(c ) Other Long-term liabilities
(d) Long-TermProvisions

Short-term borrowings
Trade Payables

/i\ total outstanding dues of micro\r'' enterprises and small enterprises;and
,::\ total outstanding dues of creditors other(ll' than micro enterprises and small
Other current liabilities

Non-Current Assets
(a) Property,Plant & Equipment ,(i) Tangible assets (

(ii) Capitgl work-in-progress
(iii) Intangible assets under development

(b) Non-current investments i

(c) Long-term loans and advances I '
(d) Other non-current assets
Current Assets
(a) Current investments -

(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables
(d) Cash and cash equivalents .\

(e) Short-term loans and advances
other current assets

1024.69
764.96

4.1 I

5 3.98

8867.39
4838.64

30.97
712.29
176.47

9 19.1 I

5410.3 r
5415.86

94.5 r
704.49
143.30

ificant Accounting Policies
otes Forming Part of Accounts

Yash Shankerlal Shah
'Jt. Managing Director

Company Secretary
M. No. ASBL7Z

Aq per our report of even
For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN No: 121335W

Jeevan Jagetiya
Partner
M. No. 046553

Date: 30th May 2024
Place: Ahmedabad
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tandalone Statement ot Pro BAHETI RECYCLING
INDUSTRIES LIMITEDFor the year ended 31st March,

{ In Lakhs

3 s,996.29
60.1 1

4) A?A 4q
10.5 5

evenue from operations
Other income

32,849.63

-447.70
1,003.15

599.6 5

80.2 5

r,275.65

3 5,31 1.91
3,704.93
-673.28

1,049.3 3

1,011.69
103.3 5

I,508.56

Expenses:
ost of materials consumed

Purchases of Stock in Trade
Changes in inventories
Employee ben"efits Expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other Expenses

69 5.76

17 5.6-8

8.32

928.57

928.57

2 36.90

-23.74

-4.68

Exceptional items

Profit before extraordinary Items and tax (V-VD

Extraordinary items

Profit before IaX(VII-VIII)

Tax Expense:
(l) Current tax
(2) Short/ ex-cess provision of Income Tax written off

3) Deferred tax

Profit/(Ioss) from discontinuing operations

x expense of discontinuing operations

Earnings per equity share:
Basic
Diluted

Significant Accounting Po 2

3TO29rmins Part of A

Managing Director
DIN: O3006486

Yash Shankerlal Shah
Jt. Managing Director

DIN: 09527701

arsh Darji
Date: 30th May 2O24
PIace: Ahmedabad

Company SecretarY
M. No. A58172

Chief Financial Officer
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Standalone Statement of Cash
For the vear ended 31st March.

Flow
2024

BAHETI RECYCLING
INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(< In Lakhs)
F@f:tne Y€tl1t'r
ended srst

March. 2O24
A Lasn !Iow lrom uperatrng Actrvrtres

Net Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisations expenses
Finance Cost
Stamp Duty Added to Land
Preliminary Expenses Written off
Interest Income

928.s7

103.35
r011.69
(r.7 r)
26.43
( 1.0 7)

69 s.76

80.2 5

s99 6s

(1.9r)
oeratins Drofit before workins caDital chanses 67.26 L373.75
\djustment for:
Increas e)/Dec reas e

Increas e)/Dec reas d
Increas e)/Dec reas e

Increas e)/Dec reas e

nc rease/(Dec rease)
nc rease/(Dec rease)

n Inventories
n Trade Receivables
n Other Current Assets and Short term loans and advances
n Long term loans and advances
n Trade Payables
n other Current Liabilities and Short Term Provisions

(34s 7.08)
577.22

(32s.49)
(3.2s)
44.24

254.84

(232s.s6)
(1s98 s7)

(32.19)

684.47
( 148.94)

asn qeneYated troYn ( rnerattons A

lax Par (248.48\ I

B Cash Flow tiom Investing Activities
Property, Plant and Equipment

Purchase Made
Capital Work in Progress
Advance Paid

Interest Income

(2O7.21)
(7 69.07)
(41.13)

r.07

(287.84)

1.9 I

sh Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of Shares
Increase in Long Term Borrowings
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings
Payment related to Share issue
Proceeds from Short term Borrowings
Securitv Premium
Interest Paid

498.70
(296.1s)

285r.25

( r0 10.26)

276.00
508. B l

(r 17.93)
1524.70
966.00

(s99.6 5)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beeinnine of the year 94.5 l 7.68

D Compnents ot Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i)Cash in hand-as certified by management
(ii)Balance with bank
(iii)Fixed Deposits

Axis Bank Fixed Deposit (More than l2 months)
Margin money kept for Bank Gurantee (By way of FD)
Axis Bank Fixed Deposit (977000)
Axis Bank Current Account
Axis Bank Ltd Shahibaug - (Yash Metals)
FD 360000
FD 45000

r 5.46

15.5I

3.05

17.99
10.48
s7.59
0.5 r
4.00
0.90

otetoffi(ms.o-{eftffI9Estr!dttf9.at€l1t : . , ).9 ,

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes Formins Part of Accounts

z
3TO 29

As per our report of even date,
For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN No: 12I335W

For and On Behalf of Board of Directors o:

B.s
il: i Balkishan S. Shah

Managing Director
Yash Shankerlal Shah
Jt. Managing Directort

Jeevan
Partner o\

DIN:0

M. No.046553

Date: 30th May 2024
Place: Ahmedabad

t'
t-;1.i.

Company Secretary
M. No. A58172

nancial Officer
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Stalements
for the year ended 3lst March 2024

3 Equity Share Capital

company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. l0 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for one vote per share ln the
t of liquidation of the company, the ho]ders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all

referential amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

(c) Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

4 Reserves and Surplus

Bqrrowings

Long-Term Borrowihgs

(a) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

mi Balkishan Shah

28,84,000.00
7,71, i 5 5.00

1 5,00,000 00
I 5,00,000 00

3,3 3,33 5:00
3,31,990 00

7,71,1 5 5.00
15,00,000 00
1s,00,000.00

3,3 3,3 3 5.00
3,31,990.00

As at Ul Apnl 2022 I

Addition during the year 1

- Received during the year
- Profit during the year

Deduction,/Ad iustments

966 00

t,216 2r

528.40
-2ia 24

r,2r6.2r

966 00
528.40

-2i4 24

As d( ur APrrr zvzJ
Addition during the year
- Received during the year
- Profit during the vear

v o o.uu ++v. zo

720.O8

z,+uo.zo

720 08



Short Term Borrowings

Fron Bank and Financial Institution
ash Credit

Financing Under Channel Finance
emperorY Over Draft

Working Capital Demand Loan

Unsecured Loans
From Related Parties

2,120.OO
1 ,28 r.86

2,000 00

599 r8

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

I
1

(

(

(,

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

t

(

I

(

(

(

(

(,

Auto Loan

Axis Bank Car I MIHS r' ReDaid 7 6194 tefer Point No.

HDFC Car Loan JO MTHS 19 EMI / Rs. 142273
lncluding Interest

7-65% tefer Point No. 2

Federal Car Loan JO MTHS
i9 zut/Rs- 140643
ncludins Interest 8.75.4 lefer Point No. 6

'elm Loan- Loan against Property

(otak Mahindra Bank Ltd. iO MTHS
tl EMI / Rs. 909410
ncluding lnterest Repo+3% lefer Point No. 3

(otak Mahindra Bank Ltd. I20 MTHS
77 EMI / Rs.26657Q
lncluding Interest

'Repo+4.5% Refer Point No. 3

:CLGS

lmergency Credit line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS)-Axis Bank JO MTHS 5 EMI/RS. r188889
Repo+2.75% max
to be Capped at Refer Point No. I

imergency Credit line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS)-Axis Bank MTHS
36 EMI/RS. 775000-
FROM 1.7 24

Repo+2.75% max
to be Capped at

o )<oa
Refer Point No. I

\xis Bank
I2 Months/ Tranc<
PEriod of Day-S----

NA Repo+2.35% Refer Point No. I

Channel Finance

Axis Tata Discounting
60 days frgm the
Date of 

/
!A Repo+2% lefer Point No. I

a ia i Finanae qO Devs {A SBT M(-l R+O-5% lefer Point No 4

HSBC
Total 75 Days l

(60+15 Days Grace
Period)

NA

8 7594 to 9 25% as
Agreed between

Company and
HSBC

lefer Point No. 5
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Auto Loan

The vehicle loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicle purchased.

Primary Security

Hlipothetication of entire currenI assets of the borrower,both presenl and future on exclusive basis,

Collateral Security

Factory land and building Situated at Block No. 176P,197 & 198, Shrinath Ind Estate, Vill Sampa, Dehgam and Land Situated at Khata Number 466, Survey No
17 4, 175 and I 75(3), Vill sampa, Dehgam. Hypo thication of Entire Plant and Machinery of the borrower both present and fu ture

Personal Guarantee

All the above facilities have been secured against personal guarantee of Mr Shankerlal Sbah,Mr. Balkishan Shah,Mrs Savita Shah and Mr. Yash Shah

Auto Loan

The vehicle loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vebicle purchased.

Personal Guarantee

All the above facilities have been secured against personal guarantee of Mr. Shankelal Shah,Mr Balkishan Shah,Mrs. Savita Shah and Mr.Yash Shah

Personal Guarantee

Al1 the above facilities have been secured against personal guarantee of Mr. Shankerlal Shah,Mr. Balkishan Shah,Mrs. Savita Shah and Mr.Yash Shah.

Primary Security

Facility provided by joint letter in favour of Bajqjj Finance Limited(BFl) duly accepted By Minda Corp and Aurangabad Electricals Limited and cash flows to be
routed directly to BFL.

Securities

Exclusive charge by way of Recoursi on Receivable discounted by HSBC. (Recourse on Cdmpany)

Personal Guarantee i
l'

All the above facilities have been secured against personal guarantee of Mr. Shankerlal Shah,Mr. Balkisban Shah,Savita Shah,Yash Shah,Ayushi Shah and
Savitaben Shah.

Auto Loan

The vehicle loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicle purchased

Primary Security

First pari passu cahrge by way of Hypothetication on Cuuent assets of the borrower,both present and future for CASH CREDIT.Exclusive charge on plant and
chines and movable fixed assets which are purchased outnf term loan sanctioned by The Federal Bank Ltd for TERM LOAN

irst pari passu charge on factory land and building created out of term loan sanctioned by the Federal Bank Ltd And Situated at BIock No. 176P, 197 & 198,
hrinath Ind Estate, Vill Sampa, Dehgam

ollateral Security

onal Guarantee

the above facilities have been secured against personal guarantee of Mr Shankerlal Shah,Mr Balkishan Shah aitd Mr Yasb Shah

fhe repayment term of loan is 60 l\4onths Including Moratorium period of 6 Months The Company has taken last disburshment in April-2024 and the
payment schedule yet not decided



6 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(

(

(

(

(

(
I

(

(

(

(

1

(

(

(,

(

(

(

(

I

I.

(

(

(

8 Other Current Liabilities

9 Short Term Provisions

I I Long Term Loans and Advances

l2 Inventories

@

i

(

7 Trade Pavables

Total Outstandinc dues of Micro
Not Due
less than One Year
1-2 years
2-3 years

ore than 3 Years

otal Outstanding dues of Other than Micro and Small Enterprises
€ss than One Year
t-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 Years

rrent maturity of Long term
vance from Customers
posit From Commission Agent
posit From Staff

'Related to PT, PF and ESIC
-Related to TDS and TCS
- Related to GST

Provision tor lncome I ax
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity L3 77
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16 Other eurrent assets

(

(

13 Trade Receivable

4,328 29
3 9.66
80 25
007

390 37

ess than 6 Months
Months - I years

ss than 6 Months

I-2 years
2-3 years

than 6 Months
Months - I years

1-2 years
2-3 years

Disputed-Considered Doubtful
Lessthan6Months - i ..-':

Months - I years
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents

(i) Cash-in-Hand (As certified by Management)
(ii) Balances with Bank
(iii) Other Bank Balances

Deposit held as Margin Money
nfh6r PahL nah^cii

15 46

15.51

3.05
58.10

r 7.99
r5 ?7

l5 Short Term Loan & Advances

25.40
5 61.80

668
86.03

202
12.37

5.5 7

r2.42

r4.49
281.7r

63.16
2.52

r2.53

0.19
s9 38
12.42

to Staff and Labour
to Supplier

jaj Finance-TDS Receivable
Balance with Government Authorities

tom Duty Receivable
ITC Claimable
Refund Receivable

Income Tax Receivable
lnterest Accrued but not Received
MGO Obligation (Sabar-!nati Gas)
NSE Deposit

Jther Current Assets

luilding Fund Contribution
)repaid Expenses
)reliminary Expenses
fhe Resistar Civil Court A'bad

0.5 0
68 15

105 71
211

0.5 0
8 55

r32 14
2-1r
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l7 Revenue from Operations

18 Other Income

19 Cost of Material Consumed(lncluding Stores and Packing)

20 Purchase of Stock in Trade

2 I Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock in Trade

22 Employes Benefits Expenses

1

(

urrency Rate Dillerence
Du ty Drawback Received
FD lnterest Income
Insurance claim received
Interest Accrued but not Received
lnterest on [ncome Tax Refund
Other Credit to Profit and Loss Accourlt
Subsidy Received
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23 Finance Cost

24 Other Expenses

54 36
534 58

806

Interest Expenses on Borrowing
Interest Expenses on Direct Taxes
lnterest Expenses on lndirect Taxes
Interest Expenses on Channel Financing
Interest Expenses Others
lnterest Expenses on Bill Discounting (RXIL)

g txpenses

Foundry Expenses
Freight & Octroi Expenses
Laboratory Expenses
Labour Charges
Power and Fuel Expenses
Security Charges

Administrative and Other Expenses
AGM Exps
Books & Periodicals Expenses

puter Maintanance Expenses
Conveyance Expenses
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Sitting Fees Expenses
Payment to Auditor

Audit Fees
Certification and other fees
CSR Exps
Donation
Fees & Subscription Expenses
Filling Expenses

en Expenses
Charges

nsurance Expenses
nternet Expense

s Expenses
Car Expenses
Expenses

Ity Exps
rol & Diesel Expense

stage & Courier Expenses
Printing & Stationary Expenses
Professional Charges
Rent, Rates & taxes
Repairing Expenses

I

& Pilfrage Expenses
Stamp Charges

elephone Expenses
Tea & Refresbment Expense
Travelling Expenses
Water Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses
Advertisement Expenses
Cash Discount
CFS Expense on Export
Clearing & Forwarding Expense on Exporl
Commission on Sales

ibition Exps
Seal Expense
Forktift Charges

reight 0utward Expenses
liminary Expenses Wrillen Off

tles & Promotlon Expense
ranspott Elpenses on Export

Char

l3s 60
20 39
76 49
4 69,
2.1 I

l2 8.06
23.13

0.54
0.03
r29
227

1.80

4.00
r.00

I 7.50
151
764
0.12
206
0.3 s

1 6.10
3.s3

767
1.17
2.78

33 62
o.74
2.00

311
44 54

o.42
095

37.30
4.88

o.97
82.0i

01 )/

48 87
914

131 50
821
9.18

10r.02
19 88

0.03
t.34
207
0.06
1.80

r78
649
0.45
0.68
o.22

17.54
3.90
075
393
1.05

22 67
065
237

37.57
241

36 38
1 .91
2.08
099
305

24 44

25 Earnings Per Share (EPS) : Basic and Diluted

,,i..4$ atiSl ltfaleh;
'.t\., :42024'

Net profit after tax (< ln Lakhs)
Weighted Average Nuhber of Equity Shares (ln Lakhs)
Face Value of Shares ({)
Earninss Per Shares - Basic & Diluted ({)

720 08
103 69

10 00
6q4

526 +V
103 69

10 00
A Rr

26 Tax Expenses and Reconciliation

6tr,
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 3lst March 2024

10B. Capital Work in Progress

Notes:
(i) Capital Work Progress ageing:

10C. Intangible assets under Development

tn

Notes:

(i) Intangible Assets under Development ageing:

. ,.n.,_

fs'.'
I

I

.Ma

Intangible Assets under Development ( Refer
Note Below) \

4.IT

'otaI tl

Less than 1 Year
I to 2 Years
2 to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

4.TI

Total "'
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27 Financial Ratio

S. No. Particulars 3r-03-20?4 3 r-03-2023 % ChanEe Reason
:urrent Ratio I30 141 -7.4404

2 Debt Equitv Ratio 2_3t 199 9.53%
J Debt Service Coverase Ratio l6 202
4 Return on Eouitv Ratio r8.93% 2 0.66"r .t1 14'1

q Inventorv Turnover Ratio 6 0l 8,4/ 29 03%

Due to
lncrease

ln

6
Trade Receivable Turnover 837 780 7.39'k

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 22.17 23 43 -5.3s",6

8 Net CaDital Turnover Ratio t2.s7 r0.5 3 L9 4?%

9 Net Protit Ratio L.68"1 L4.25%
l0 Return on CaDital EmDloved /9i 12.58% 9 6?%

I
Particulars

Numerator Current Assets 14 625.7 tt.768.47
Denominator Current Liabilities 11.2 I I - a 349./2

: Depreciation &

Finance Cost & Lease Payment
+ Principal ltem of Long term

wings During thq Year

Cost Of Material Consumed +
Purchase of Stock in Trade

4t8.75

ore Interest & Tax
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28.1. The information required as per para 5 (viii) (a) of part II of schedule III of the

Companies Act,2013 regarding information about the value of imports calculated on CIF

basis, in respect of imported raw materials, components and spare parts and capital goods

as follows:

28.2. The information required as per para.-S (viii) (e) of part II of schedule III of the

Companies Act,2013 regarding inforniation about the value of exported goods calculated

on FOB basis as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars % F Y 2023-2024 % FY 2022-2023

I) Value of
Imported Spare

Parts and

Components

Imported

Total

ID Value of
Imported Raw

Material

Imported 69.56 26498.75 70.99 24653.42

Total 69.s6 26498.75 70.99 246s3.42

Particulars % F Y 2023-2024 % F Y 2022-2023

I) Value of
Exported Goods

Exported' 0.76 324.80 1.78 - 64 1.10

Total o.76 324.80 r.78 64r.10
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" 29 Notes Forming the Part of Accounts:

29.1: Related Party Transactions:

(

(

Sr. No. Related Parties Names of the relatetl parties with
whom transaction were carried out
during the period and description of
relationship:

1) Key Management Personnel/Directors t.Shankerlal Bansilal Shah-Whole Time

Director

2.Balkishan Shankerlal Shah-Managing

Director

3.Yash Shah- Managing Director

4.Ayushi Yash Shah-Director

5.Manojkumar Jagdishchandra Shah-

CFO

6.Mansi Harish Darji-CS

T.Shankerlal G Bahedia-CAO

2) Relatives of Key Management

Personnel's: l.Savitaben Shankerlal Shah

Lakhs({In Lakhs)

Related Parties

Transactions

Loan
Received

fo"rJ
Repaid

Remuner
ation

Paid/Paya
ble/Sittin

g Fee

Interest Rent

Staff
Advance

Given/(Re
payment)

Key Managerial Person

Shankerlal B Shah 764.39 798.45 36.00 35.6s 2.16

Balkishan S Shah 25r.52 289.2r 24,0O 2.35

Yash S Shah 2672.20' 28BB.47 24.0O 30.76

Ayushi S Shah .27.O0 9.78 0.60

Shankerlal G Bahedia 4.25

Manoj J Shah-CFO 14.9 5 (3.00)

Mansi Darji-CS 1.80



29.2: Pending Litigation and Contingent Liability

we have been informed by the managemenr that a civil suit No. wc FATAL LCl000007/2020

dated O7-02-2O2O has been filed against the company by making it one of the party under

workers Compensation Act,I923 by father of an employee of the contractor of the company

claiming compebsation of Rs.11,77,000/- on account of death of his son while rendering

services to the company.

29.3: Disclosure required under section 22 of. Micro,small and Medium Enterprises
(<In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31"'
March. 2024

As at 31"'
March, 2023

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as
at the end of the vear

402.57 0.00

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
as at the end of the accountrng vear
The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the
aooointed dav
The amount of inteiest due and payable for the period
of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest spiecified under MSMED
Act
The amount of interest accrued andiremainilrg unpaid
at the end of accountinq year I

The amount of further interest due and payable even
in succeeding year, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid - to the small
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowan-ce as a

deductible expenditure under section 23
Dues to Micro and Srhall Enter.prises have been
determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of iqformation collected by the
management. This. has been relied upon by the
auditor's.

Note: The Disclosure in respect of the amotrnts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have
been made in the financial statements based on the information received and available with
the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be
payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The
Company has not received any claim for interest fro.m any supplier as at the balance sheet
date, These facts have been relied upon by the auditors.



29.4=

The company is operating only one business segment. Further, company primarily operates in

India. Therefore, no further information required to disclose as per "Accounting Standard-lZ-

Segment Reporting"

29.5:

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary.

29.6=

No funds have been advanced or loaned or-invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other resources or kind of funds)by the company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities("Intermediaries") with the understanding whether recorded
in writing or otherwise that the intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (Ultimate beneficiaries) by or on behalf
of the company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the comparry from any persons or entities, including'foreiqn
entities ("Funding Parties") with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise
that the company shall directly or indirectly - lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever ("qltimate-Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the funding
parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
beneficiaries.

29.7:

The company has not entered
Companies Act, 2013 or section

any trdnsactions with struck off under section 248 of the
560 of Companies Act,1956.

2g.s:

There is no scheme of arrangements
Cornpanies act,20l3.

29.9:

that hasr been approved terms of section 230 to 237 ofln

There are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account to be surrendered
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income tax act,f 961.

)

if
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29.10. Corporate Social Responsibility:

In compliance with the section 135 of Companies act,2013, the company has already spent
amount of Rs.15.00 lakhs towards CSR expenditure.

29.1 1:

The Company has
financial year.

29.L2

\

not traded or invested

\
\

in cryptg currency or virtual currency during the

for holding any benami
of 1988) and the rules

No proceedings havdbeen initiated or pbnding agairlst the company
. propeity under the b-enami transactions (prohibitioh) act,l9BB (45

made thereunder. ._ I \

29.r3:

The company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. /-'

Year

Ended

Amount

required

to be

spent by

the

company

during

the year

Amount of

expenditure

incurred

Shortfall

at the

end of

the year

Total of
previous.

yearls

shortfall
i

I

,l

Reason

for

shortfall

Nature i of

CSR

activities

Details of

related

party

transactions

31"

March

2024

7.83 15.00 NIL NIL N.A. Human

Welfare,

Qommunity
Personal and

Social

Services

NIL
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29.14:

In the opinion of the board and to the best of its knowledge and belief, the value on

realization of current assets and loans and advances are approximately of the same value as

stated. The management has confirmed that adequate provisions have been made for all the

known and determined liabilities and the same is not iR--excess of the amounts reasonably

required to be provided for. All other contractual liabilities connected with business

operations of the company have been appropriately provided for.

As per our Report of even date,

For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO

Chartered Accountants
FRN: - 121335W

Jeevan Jagetiya
Partner
Membership No: - 046553
UDIN: 24O46553BKEXRD7O89 i

Date: 30'h May, 2024

Place: Ahmedabad

For,
I ---\

Baheti Recycling Industries Limited

I

(.

B's't'l*^
Balkishan S. Shah

DIN: - 03006486
(Managing Director)

Yash Shankerlal Shah

DIN : 09527701
(Managing'Direclor)

(Chief Financial Officer)

(Company Secretary)

h"r.@

hmar Shah
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